
. ONE HUNDRED AND EIGHTY
. THIRD MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Tuesday, 27 July 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President : Dr. Charles MALIK 

15. Continuation of the discussion on 
· the Report of the Economic Com

mission for Europe 1 (E/791, E/791/ 
Add. 1 and 2, and E/884) 

The PRESIDENT announced that the. Soviet 
Union proposals made at the previous meeting 
would shortly be circulated in documentary form. 

Mr. THORP (United States of America) stated 
that it had been his hope that the discussion 
would focus specifically on the work and the 
Report of the Economic Commission for Europe. 
He was confident that a discussion on these sub
jects would still take place, for the Commission 
was the most fully developed of all the subsi
diary commissions set up by the Council. and, 
as such, deserved the most careful. attention. 
Detailed consideration of its work would also be 
of· great interest to the. other regional economic 
commissions set up more recently. vv"11en such 
a discussion took place, he would declare the full 
support of the United States Goverllll1ent for 
the Economic Commission for Europe and would 
pay tribute to. its remarkable achievements. 

The focus of discussion had, however, been 
shifted to the question of aid to Europe, and 
more e'specially to the policy of the United States 
Government with regard to the European Reco
very Programme. It was incumbent on him, 
therefore, as that Government's representative on 
the Council, to explain its policy with regard to 
the European Recovery Programme very fully. 

· 'l'he interpretation of that programme which 
they had heard at the previous meeting from the 
Soviet Union representative appeared to him to 
be based on three fundamental misapprehensions. 
In the first place, the European Recovery Pro
gramme was represented as a United States plot 
forced on a number of European governments, 
whose own major part in initiating and adminis
tering the programme was ignored. But the his
torical background of the Ilfarsha]l Plan was 
well known. The United States Secretary of 
State had suggested that Emopean post-war 
recovery needed to proceed on a more orderly 
and co-ordinated basis. That . suggestion had 
been at once taken up by a number of European 
countries, whose representatives had met in Paris 
to work out the broad lines of a co-ordinated 
plan and of continuing machinery. Their con
clusions had, at a lat~r stage, been amplified and 
given concrete form in a signed agreement which 
had defined their common purposes and had estab
lished continuing machinery under their own 

1 See Supplement No. 10 (E/791). 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT
TROISIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le mardi 27 juillet 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK 

15. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
de la Commission economique pour 
l'Eu:rope 1 (E/791, E/791/ Add. 1 et 
2, et E/884) 

Le PRESIDENT fait connaitre que les proposi
tions faites a la seance precedente par la dele
gation de l'Union sovietique seront distribuees 
incessamment par ecrit. 

J\L THORP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare 
qu'il avait espere que la discussion se concentre
rait specialement sur les travaux et le rapport 
de la Commission economique pour l 'Europe. Il 
espere que ces questions feront encore l'objet 
d'un debat, carla Commission est la plus evoluee 
de toutes les commissions subsidiaires creees .par 
le Conseil et merite, a ce titre, !'attention la plus 
minutieuse. L'examen detaille de ses travaux pre
sentera, par ailleurs, un gl'and interet pour les 
autres commissions economiques regionales creees 
plus recemment. Lorsque cette discussion s'enga
gera, il apportera a la Commission economique 
pour l 'Europe l 'appui integral du Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis et rendra hommage aux resultats 
remarquables qu'elle a obtenus. 

lVIais la discussion s'est deplacee et a ete portee 
sur le terrain de la question de l'aide a l'Europe, 
plus specialement de l~ politique du Gouverne
ment des Etats-Unis a l'egard du programme de 
relevement economique de l'Europe. En taut que 
representant de ce pays au Co:i:Lseil, il a done le 
devoir d'exposer dans tous ses details la poli
tique de son Gouvernement ·a l 'egard du pro
gramme en question. 

L'interpretation que le representant de l'Union 
sovietique a donnee de ce programme, a la seance 
precedente, lui semble reposer sur trois concep~ 
tions fondamentalement erronees: En premier lieu, 
le programme de relevement economique de !'Eu
rope est presente comme un plan premedite des 
Etats-Unis, impose a un certain nombre de gou
vernements €mropeens, dont la participation 
importante a l'etablissement et a l'execution de 
ce programme est passee sous silence. L'histo
riquc du plan Marshall est pourtant bien connu. 
Le Secretaire d'Etat des Etats-Unis a exprime 
l'idee que le relevement de l'E11rope au lende
main de la guerre devait se faire de fa~on plus 
methodique et plus coordonnee. Cette idee a ete 
immediatem.ent reprise par un certain nombre de 
pays enropeens dont les representants · se sont 
reunis a Paris pour tracer les grandes lignes 
d'un plan coordonne et celles d'un o:rganisme · 
permanent. Plus tard, leurs conclusions ont ete 
developpees ct ont.ete concretisees dans un accord. 
dument signe, qui a defini les buts communs des 

1 Voir le Supplement No 10 (E/79]). 

., \ 110 



control !or the achievement o£ those purposes. 
The United States had not been repres~nted at . 
the meetings which resulted -in that agreement. 
Now that the European Recovery Programme 
was entering the operational stage, it could 'be 
seen in retrospect that the whole of the initial · 
work. and the greater part of the subsequent 
detailed planning had been done_ by the partici
pating European countries; the main function of 
the United States had been to compare European 
requirements with United States availabilities. 
To represent the European Recovery Programme 
as a plot by the United States was to do a serious 

, injustice to the participating European coun
tries. 

Secondly, the Soviet Union representative had 
apparently failed to appreciate the character of 
the institutions of European countries benefiting 
from Marshall aiel. A feature common to all 
those countries was the existence of different 
political parties, free parliamentary discussion, 
-free elections and a free Press. In all those· 
countries, therefore, the government in power 
was wholly responsible to the will of the people. 
Even in countries which did not enjoy similar 
freedom and 'vhere only a single party was per
mitted, it was to be noted that domination by a 
foreign power, if too rigidly exerted, did on occa
sions provoke rebellion. But when countries 
possessed free institutions, as did the countries 
participating in the European Recovery Pro- . 
gramme, it was ridiculous to suggest that the 
legislators of those countries, who were wholly 
responsible to the people, could approve and 
enter into bilateral agreements which entailed 
their domination by a foreign Power. 

Finally, the European Recovery Programme 
should be discussed as it was in fact, and not 
as ·a few individuals or editorial writers had 
imagined or suggested a year previously that it 
would or should be. 

The Soviet Union representative's picture of 
the European Recovery Programme was based, 
then, on ~ailure to recognize the actual structure 
and mechanism of the aid being furnished to 
EuTope, the part played in it by the European 

· countries themselves, the character of their in
stitutions and the effectiveness of the public opi
nion of their peoples. 

It would' be easy to spend several hours rejec
ting specific charges made against United States 
foreign policy and examining the statistics 
·quoted. He had, however, tried to classify the 
criticisms ·made and would. deal with them in 
groups. 

Th_e fundamental charge that had been level
led against United States policy by the Soviet 
Union representative was that the Marshall Plan 
was designed to serve the expansionist policy of 
United States monopolies. ·It had been made a 
basis of criticism that United States exports to 

.Europe had never been higher. Certainly they 

111 

pays interesses et eree un organisme permanent 
fonctionnant sons leur propre controle et destine 
a leur permettre d'atteindre ces buts. Les Etats
Unis n'etaient pas representes aux reunions qui 
ant abouti a la conclusion de cet accord. Main
tenant que le programme de relevement econo~ 
mique de l'Europe entre dans sa phase d'exe
cution, on pent eonstater avec le recul du temps 
que tous les travaux preparatoires et la · plus 
grande partie de la mise au point qui a suivi, 
ont ete le fait des pays europeens participants, 
le role des Etats-Unis ayant surtout consiste a 
comparer les besoins europeens aux disponibilites 
des Etats-Unis. Presenter le programme de rele
vement economique de )'Europe comme un plan 
premedite des Etats-Unis c'est done commettre 
nne grave injustice a l'egard des pays europeans 
qui y participent. 

En deuxieme lieu, il semble que le represen
tant de l'Union sovietique n'ait pas tenu compte 
du caractere des institutions politiques des pays 
qui beneficient de l'aide assuree au titre du plan 
Marshall. Tons ces pays ont en commun cette 
particularite qu'il y existe .divers partis poli
tiques, que la liberte regne dans les debats des 
assemblees parlementaires, dans les elections et 
dans la presse. Dans tons ces pays, le gouvernec 
ment au pouvoir est done entierenient respon
sable devant le. peuple. Il est a remarquer que, 
meme dans les pays qui ne jouissent pas d 'une 
liberte semblable et ou !'existence d'un parti 
m1ique est seule autorisee, la domination d'une 
puissance etrangere, lorsqu'elle s'exerce de fagon 
trop severe, provoque parfois la revolte. Mais 
quand des pays possedent des institutions libres, 
_comme c'est le cas des pays qui participent au 
programme de relevement economique de l'Euc 
rope, il est ridicule d'insinuer que les legislateurs 
de ces pays, qui sont entierement responsables 
devant le peuple, pourraient approuver et 
conclure des accords bilateraux entrainant la 
domination d'une· puissance etrangere. 

Enfin, il faut juger le programme de releve
ment economique de l'Europe tel qu'il est en 
realite, et non pas tel qu'un petit nombre de per
sonnes ou de journalistes ont imagine on emis 
l'idee, il y a un an, qu'il serait ou devrait etre. 

Ainsi, le tableau que le representant de l'Union 
sovietique a brosse du programme de relevement 
economique repose-t-il sur la meconnaissance de 
la structure et du mecanisme reels de l'aide qui 
est fournie a l'Europe, dn role joue, dans ce pro
gramme, par les pays· europeens eux-memes, du 
caractere de leurs institutions et de l'action effec:. 
tivement exerc_ee par !'opinion publique de leur 
population. 

On pourrait aisem:ent passer des heures entieres 
a refuter les accusations' precises portees contre 
la· politique etrangere des Etats-Unis et a dis
cuter les donnees statistiques citees. Mais' l'ora
teur a .essaye de classer les critiques par groupes 
qu'il examinera un a un. 

L'accusation fondamentale formulee contre la 
politique des Etats-Unis par le representant de 
l'Union sovietique c'est que le plan Marshall 
aurait pour but de servir la politique expansion
niste des monopoles americains. Il a egalement 
tire argument, pour ses critiques, .du fait que le 
volume des e~p01;tations des Etats-Unis a desti-



were large, but that was at the request o£ Euro
pean governments and businessmen. And the 
fact that they far exceeded what could be paid 
for by Europe, either then or at a later date, 
seemed to h1m rather a measure of the genuine
ness of the American desire for the recovery 
of Europe than an indication of expansionist 
policy. 

It was not the United States' aim to increase 
the economic dependence of Europe on America, 
but rather to eliminate it. It seemed reasonable 
at that time, when the level of production was 
lo(V in Europe and high in the United States, 
that large quantities of goods should be sent 
from America to Europe. But it was not clear 
to him how such a policy could, in the long run, 
assist United States business interests. For the 
aim of the Marshall Plan was to raise the level 
of European production and to stimulate intra
European trade, so that Europe could once again 
become a self-supporting region. In this con
nexion, he felt that the Soviet Union represen
tative had drawn a false inference from the pas
sage he had quoted from a speech by the United 
States Assistant Secretary for Agriculture. 
While the immediate cessation of exports to 
Europe would necessarily cause difficulties to the 
United States, these would not be permanent, nor 
would they be as serious as the_ Soviet Union 
representative appeared to think; since exports 
to Europe only accounted for a minor proportion 
of United States production. In any case, Ame
rican citizens were far more concerned with the 
existing crisis in Europe than with any h;ypothe
tical crisis in the United States. He pointed out 
that the existing situation was not one in which 
the United States had to find markets abroad for 
vast quantities of surplus goods. 'l'he United 
States itself was experiencing a period of short
ages, and it was no easy mactter to make available 
the quantity of goods which would be supplied 
under the Marshall Plan. Not only was there a 
competing demand from domestic consumers, but 
also from other large areas of the world, which 
had expressed concern that their economic inte
rests might suffer from the European Recovery 
Programme. 

The import ·of another group of charges 
levelled against his Government was that the 
European Recovery Programme would result in 
enforced modification of the economic structure of 
the participating European countries, in the 
interests of what the Soviet Union representative 
called United States monopoly capitalists. He 
repeated that the European Recovery Programme 
was drawn up by the European co1mtries them
selves; the bilateral agreements concluded be
tween them and the United States Government 
contained no evidence whatsoever that could 
substantiate such a charge. 

It was also entirely without foundation to 
suggest that the Marshall Plan would limitexpan-
3ion of European agriculture. The European 

112 

nation de l'Europe n'a jamais ete plus important. 
Ces exportations sont certes considerables, mais 
c'est sur la demaJ;~-de des gouvernements et du 
monde des affaires des pays europeens. Et le fait 
que ces exportations depassent de beaucoup lm: 
facnltes ·de paiement presentes ou futures de 
l 'Europe semble donner la mesure du desir sin
cere de l'Amerique de voir l'Europe se relever, 
plutot que la marque d'une politique expansion
niste. 

L'ohjectif des Etats-Unis n'est pas d'accroitre 
la dependance economique de l'Europe vis-a-vis 
de I' Amerique, mais plutot de la faire disparaitre. _ 
Il semble raisonnable qu'a l'epoque actuelle, ou le 
niveau de production est bas en Europe et eleve 
aux Etats-Unis, de grandes quantites de mar
chandises soient envoyees d'Amerique en Europe. 
Mais l'orateur ne voit gnere comment, ala longue, 
cette politique pourrait servir les interets com
merciaux des Etats-Unis. Car le plan Marshall 
a pour but d'elever le niveau de la production 
europeenne et de stimuler les echanges inter
europeens, de fa<;;on que l'Europe puisse redevenir 
nne region qui se sufiise a elle-meme. A cet egard, 
il estime que le representant de l'Union sovietique 
a tire nne conclusion fausse du passage du dis
cours du Sous-Secretaire d'Etat a l'agriculturo 
des Etats-Unis, dont il a donne lecture. S'il est 
vrai qu'un arret brusque des exportations a des
tination de l'Europe causerait fatalement des 
difficu:ltes aux Etats-Unis, ces difficultes ne 
seraient ni permanentes n'i aussi graves que le 
representant de l'Union sovietique parait le pen
ser, etant donne que les exportations a destina
tion de l'Em·ope ne representent qu'une faible 
partie de la production des Etats-Unis. En tout 
cas, les citoyens americains se preoccupent bien 
plus de la crise europeenne actuelle que d'une 
hypothetiqne orise aux Etats-Unis. L'orateur fait 
remarquer que, dans la situation actuelle, les 
Etats-Unis n'en sont pas a rechercher des mar
ches a l'etranger, pour y ecouler d'abondantes 
quantites de produits excedentaires. Ils souffrent 
enx-memes de la penurie de certains produits et 
ce n'est pas tache facile que de trouver les quan
tites de marchandises qui doivent etre expediees 
en application du plan Marshall. Non seulement 
il faut compter avec la demande concurrente des 
consommateurs an1ericains, mais encore d'autres 
grandes regions du monde ont exprime la crainte 
que leurs interets economiques n'eussent a souf
frir du programme de relevement de l'Europe. 

Une autre partie des accusations portees 
contre le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis s'inspire 
de l'idee que le programme de relevement eco
nomique de l'Europe aurait pour resultat d'im
poser aux pays europeens qui y participent nne 
modification de leur structure economique, au 
profit de ce que le representant de l'Union sovie
tique a appele les monopoles capitalistes des 
Etats-Unis. l\1. Thorp tient a repeter que le pro
gramme de relevement economique dl3 l'Euro1)e 
a ete etabli par les pays europeens eux-memes ; 
il n'y a dans les accords bilateraux conclus entre 
eux et le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis aucune 
clause sur laquelle on puisse fonder nne telle 
accusation. 

Il est egalement tout a fait injustifie d'insi
nuer que le plan Marshall entravera le develop
pement de !'agriculture de l'Europe. Les pays 



countries ·had given agricultural expansion top 
priority; the United States Government fully 
agreed with that decision and would assist deve
lopment of European agriculture in every way it 
could. 

The Soviet Union representative had unfavour
ably compared the effects of the Marshall Plan 
on European industry with those of the United 
Nations Relief and Rehabilitation Administra
tion. He had been amazed to hear the Soviet 
Union representative give the percentage of total 
Marshall aid supplies that woul.d be allocated to 
industry, as that figure was not yet fixed. He 
could assure the Council, however, that the Euro
pean Recovery Programme, which was a much 
larger project than that undertaken by UNRRA, 
would bring very considerable assistance to Euro
pean industry, although the view of European 
countries that a large part of the capital require
ments for industry could be met from Europe, 
would of course be taken into account. 

If neither agriculture nor industry were to 
benefit from the large sums of money appropria
ted in the United States for European recovery, 
where exactly did the Soviet Union representa
tive think that the money would go ? 

It was quite untrue to suggest that the Euro
pean Recovery Programme would result in a 
decrease in the volume of intra-European trade. 
As he had stated, the major purpose of the Pro
gramme was to restore European trade to its pre
war balance, and that. could only be done by an 
increase in its volume. 

With regard to control by the United States of 
the sources of raw materials purchased by Euro
pean participating countries, he felt that where 
such materials were paid for with American 
dollars, such a control was no more than a normal 
and justifiable privilege accorded to whoever was 
paying for the purchases. Where an interna
tional allocation system was in force, he hoped 
that such funds would be used as far as possible 
within the framework of international organi
zation. There was, however, no provision, either 
in the European Recovery Act. passed by Con
gress or in the bilateral agreements, whereby the 
United States could attempt to dictate rates of 
exchange and terms and conditions of trade. He 
repeated that it was the hope and expectation of 
the United States Government that European 
agriculture, industry and trade would be enabled, 
by the European Recovery Programme, to 
expand to the limits of existing possibilities. 

Although it had to be admitted that certain 
groups in the United States had advocated that 
the European Recovery Programme should be 
used to influence the economic structure of bene
ficiary countries, that view had not been endorsed 
by Congress, nor was it reflected in -any of the 
bilateral agreements. For example, the United 
Kingdom representative would be able to confirm 

europeens ont mis au tout premier plan de leurs 
objectifs !'augmentation de la production agri
cole; le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis approuve 
pleinement cette decision et favorisera le deve
loppement de l'agricu~ture europeenne par tous 
les moyens en son pouvoir. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a compa
re, pour en tirer des conclusions defavorables, 
les consequences qu'aura le plan Marshall sur 
l'industrie de l 'Europe avec celles qu'a eues !'Ad
ministration des Nations Unies pour les secours 
et la reconstruction. · L'orateur a ete stupefait 
d'entendre le representant de l'U~ion sovietique 
citer le pourcentage du total des fournitures pre
vues par le plan Marshall qui sera attribue a 
l'industrie, car ce chiffre n'est pas encore fixe. 
Mais, il peut assurer le Conseil que le programme 

r de relevement economique de l 'Europe - entre
·r· prise beaucoup plus vaste que n'etait celle de 
. l'UNRRA - apportera une aide tres sensible a 
r l'industrie de l'Europe, sans que l'on neglige, 
i bien entendu, de tenir compte du point de vue 
' des pays europeens selon lequel une grande par-

tie des besoins en outillage industriel peut etre 
satisfaite en Europe meme. 

I
. Si ni !'agriculture ni l'industrie ne doivent 
'. beneficier des sommes importantes allouees par les 
I' Etats-Unis pour le relevement de !'Europe, ou 

done le representant de l'Union sovietique pense
; t-il que l 'argent doive aller ? 

Il est tout a fait inexact de dire que le pro
gramme de relevement de l'Europe aurait pour 
effet de diminuer le volume du commerce inter-

, europeen. Comme l'orateur l'a declare, le princi
pal but du programme est de rendre au com
merce de !'Europe l'equilibre qu'il connaissait 
avant la guerre, et cela n'est possible que si l'on 
en augmente le volume. 

En ce qui concerne le controle exerce par les 
Etats-Unis sur les sources des matieres premieres 
achetees par les pays de l'Europe qui participent 
au programme, l'orateur estime que, lorsque ces 

, matieres premieres sont payees en dollars des 
; Etats-Unis, ce controle n'est rien d'autre qu'un 
' privilege normal et legitime de celui qui paie les 
• achats. Dans les cas ou c 'est un systeme interna
: tional de repartition qui est applique, l'orateur 
1 espere que les fonds seront employes, dans toute 

la mesure du possible, dans le cadre de !'organi
sation internationale. Cependant, il n 'existe ni 
dans la loi sur le relevement economique de l'Eu
rope votee par le Congres, ni dans les accords 

. bilateraux, aucune disposition qui puisse per
mettre aux Etats-Unis d'essayer d'imposer des 
taux de change ou des conditions au commerce. 
L'orateur repete que le Gouvernement des Etats
Unis espere et prevoit que !'agriculture, l'indus
trie et le commerce de l'Europe, pourront, grace 
au programme de relevement economique, se 
developper jusqu'aux limites des possibilites exis
tantes. 

Bien qu'il faille admettre que certains milieux 
des Etats-Unis ont preconise que le programme 
de relevement economique de l'Europe soit utilise 
pour agir sur la structure economique des pays 
beneficiaires, ce point de vue n'a pas ete adopte 
par le Congres, et il ne se reflete dans aucun des 
accords bilateraux. Par exemple, comme le repre
sentant du Royaume-Uni pourra le confirmer, Ie 

113 

B 



that no commitment had been entered into by His 
Majesty's Government regarding nationalization 
of the steel industry. 

He could think of no basis for the unsubstan
tiated charge that the M11,rshall Plan would act 
to the detriment of small business undertakings 
in Europe, unless it was the equally mistaken 
supposition that the European Recovery Act 
guaranteed profits for United States investors 
in Europe. That misconception doubtless arose 
from superficial study of the guarantee provi
sions, by which the Administrator was autho
rised to g·uarantee the transfer in dollars, up to 
the amount of the original investment, of any pro
fits made in local currencies not convertible into 
dollars. 

The Soviet Union representative had preferred 
the charge that the Marshall Plan was designea 
to enhance the military potential of Germany. 
The United States authorities, in their Zone of 
Occupation, had fully met their commitments to 
destroy German military potential and had 
expressed willingness to enter into. a long-term 
agreement with the other occupying powers to 
guarantee the demilitarization .of Germany. 
They recognized that the peace-time potential of 
Germany must be restored, but it was on that 
basis alone that Germany would benefit from 
American aid to Europe. 

The bilateral agreements between the United 
States and the beneficiary countries also dis
proved the allegation that the jurisdiction of the 
International Court of Justice was in any way 
extended by those agreements. In cases which 
had not previously been brought within the com
petence of that organization by government 
action, governments would still be free to resort 
to other methods of arbitration. 
~~Perhaps the wildest charge levelled against the 
Marshall Plan was that it opened the way to 
penetration of a number of colonies by the 
United States. The increase in the shipment of 
goods from the United States to the Belgian 
Congo, as compared with pre-war shipments, had 
been taken as supporting that charge. But 
shipments to the Belgian Congo were for the 
benefit of its population and were not designed 
to create an advantageous position for the 
United States. The general agreement with Bel
gium covered all territories under Belgian juris
diction, and no special treatment was provided 
for in the case of colonial possessions. 

He flatly denied that the United States Govern
ment had sought any special authority in the 
question of exchange rates. The problem of 
local currency was a technical one. Proceeds 
from the sale by European governments of goods 
procured from the United States on a grant basis 
were, in most cases, approximately equal to their 
purchase cost in the United States; participating 
countries had agreed to place in a special account 
the local currency equivalent to that cost, at 
normal International Monetary Fund exchange 
rates. Such funds, which would be in the name 
of the European governments, would be used on 
the basis of agreements between the United States 
and the beneficiary countries for their joint 

Gouvernement de Sa Majeste Britannique n'a 
pris aucun engagement concernant la nationali
sation de l'industrie de l'aeier. 

L'orateur se demande en vain sur quoi pour
rait reposer l'accusation gratuite selon laquelle 
le plan Marshall ferait tort aux petites entre
prises europeennes, a moins que ce ne soit la sup
position egalement erronee que la loi sur le rele
vement economique de l 'Europe garantirait des 
profits aux Americains qui placent des capitaux 
en Europe. Cette idee fausse est certainement nee 
d'un examen superficiel des clauses de garantie, 
aux termes desquelles l'administrateur a pouvoir 
de garantir le transfert en dollars jusqu'a concur
rence du montant du placement initial, de tous les 
profits realises en monnaies locales, non conver-
tibles en dollars. · ·. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a repro
eM au plan Marshall d'avoir pour but d'aug
menter le potential militaire de l'Ailemagne. · Les 
autorites des Etats-Unis, dans leur zone d'oc
cupation, ont entierement tenu !'engagement 
qu'elles avaient pris de detruire le potential mili
taire allemand et elles se sont declarees pretes a 
conclure liD accord de loDooue duree avec les 
autres puissances occupantes, afin de garantir la 
demilitarisation de l'Allemagne. Elles recon
naissent que le potentiel economique allemand du 
temps de paix doit etre restaure, et c'est unique
mont a cette fin que l'Allemagne beneficiera de 
l'aide americaine a l'Europe. 

Les accords bilateraux conclus entre les Etats
Unis et les pays beneficiaires reduisent egalement 
a neant !'affirmation selon laquelle la competence 
de la Cour internationale de Justice serait elargie 
le moins du monde par ces accords. Dans les cas 
qui n'etaient pas deja soumis ala juridiction de 
cet organisme par decision gouvernementale, les 
gouvernements resteront .libres d'avoir recours 
a d'autres methodes d'arbitrage. 

L'accusation la plus extravagante, peut-etre, 
qu~ ait ete portee contre le plan Marshall est 
celle qui consiste a pretendre qu'il ouvrirait la 
voie a la penetration des Etats-Unis dans un 
certain nombre de colonies. A l'appui de cette 
accusation, on a fait etat de l'accroissement,. par 
rapport aux livraisons d'avant guerre, des mar
chandises expediees par les Etats-Unis au Congo 
belge. Mais ces expeditions sont destinees a pro
fiter a la population du Congo belge et non pas 
a mettre les Etats-Unis dans une situation avan
tageuse. L 'accord general conclu avec la Belgique 
porte sur tous les territoires administres par la 
Belgique, et aucun regime special n'a ete prevu 
pour les possessions coloniales. · 

L'orateur nie absolument que le Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis ait cherche a s'assurer des pou
voirs particuliers en ce qui concerne les taux de 
change. La question des monnaies locales est 
une affaire technique. Le produit de la vente, par 
les gouvernements europeens, de marchandises 
livrees par les Etats-Unis a titre de subvention 
est a peu pres egal, dans la plupart des cas, au 
prix d'achat de ces marchandises aux Etats-Unis. 
Les pays participant au plan ont decide de verser 
a un compte special !'equivalent en monnaie 
locale de ce prix, au taux normal de change du 
Fonds monetaire .international. Ces fonds, qui 
resteront au compte ·des gouvernements euro
peans, seront employes conformement aux accords 

114 



benefit. Seeing th~t no such agreement had· yet 
been concluded between the United States and 
Italy, he had been amazed to leaJ:'Il from . the 
Soviet Union representative that the proceeds 
from grant-basis goods supplied to Italy would 
be utilized for a project under the control of 
United States military forces. 

It had been alleged that the information pro
vided under the European Recovery Programme 
would give the United States a stranglehold on 
the economic life of participating countries and 
was also required for military purposes. All the 
countries participating in the European Reco
very Programme viewed the exchange of econo
mic information as a normal, necessary and bene
ficial practice. He was confident of the ability 
of European countries to safeguard information 
which th,ey considered should not be divulged. 

T.he ·unsubstantiated and reckless allegation 
that the Marshall Plan was designed to secure 
military bases for the United States could ~mly 
have been made for the purpose of creating fear 
and suspicion. He deplored that such a charge 
should have been made during a discussion on 
economic affairs. 

It had also been suggested that the Marshall 
Plan caused fear and alarm to the peoples of 
participating countries. He considered, on the 
contrary, that qne of its main benefits was to 
remove fear and alarm .which might justifiably 
have been felt in face of insuperable economic 
difficulties. 
·The Soviet Union representative had made 

continual play with the phrases "American 
monopolists" and . "Ainerican ruling classes". 
The European Recovery Programme was not a 
programme of American monopolists, whoever 
they might be. It was, on the other hand, a· pro
gramme of the American ruling classes, in other 
words, of the ordinary American people, of town 
and country, and of every walk of life, who all 
supported the European Recovery Programme 
because of their deep and lasting concern for the 
continent of Europe. 

The ·views expressed at the previous meeting 
by the Soviet Union representative might logi
cally have led to a demand for suppression of the 
Economic Commission for Europe. For if the 
European countries were as much under the 
domination of the United States as had been sug
gested, it was difficult to see what useful func
tions the Commission could perform. But all 
who had taken part in the work of the Economic 
Commission for Europe, and especially of its 
working parties, realised that it provided a 
forum · in which free nations could exchange 
information on their programmes, discuss com
mon problems and plan co-operative action. The 
United States Governm()nt. had given its whole
hearted support to the Commission since its 
inception. He :would recall to those represen
tatives who had suggested that the Commission 
was not fully effective, that only ten months had 

conclus entre les Etats-Unis et les pays bene
ficiaires dans leur interet commun. Comme aucun 
accord de ce genre n'a encore ete conclu entre les 
Etats-Unis et l'Italie, l'orateur a ete tres etonne 
d'apprendre du repr~sentant de l'Union sovieti" 
que que le produit de la vente des marchandises 
livrees a l'Italie a titre de subvention . serait 
employe a l'execution d'une entreprise placee 
sous le controle de l'armee des Etats-Unis. 

On a pretendu que les renseignements fournis 
a l'occasion du programme de relevement econo
mique de l'Europe donneraient aux Etats-Unis 
le moyen de tenir a leur merci la vie economique 
des pays participant au programme, et aussi que 
ces renseignements leur etaient necessaires a des 
fins militaires. Tous tes pays participant au pro
gramme de relevement economique de 1 'Europe 
considerent l'echange de renseignements d'ordre 
economique comme une pratique normale, neces
saire et utile. L'orateur est convaincu que les 
pays europeans sauront garder secrets les rensei
gnements qu'ils estiment ne pas devoir etre divul
gues. 

C'est seulement pour faire naitre la peur et les 
soupgons qu'on a pretendu a la legere et sans 
fondement que le plan Marshall avait pour but 
de procurer au.x Etats-Unis des bases militaires. 
L'oratcur deplore qu'une telle accusation ait ete 
portee au cours de la discussion de .questions eco
nomiques. / 

On a egalement laisse entendre que le plan 
Marshall suscitait la peur et !'inquietude parmi 
les peuples et les pays qui y participant. Bien au 
c'ontraire, l'orateur estime que l'un de ses prin" 
cipaux merites est (l'eloigner la peur et !'inquie
tude qu'auraient pu normalement provoquer des 
difficultes economiques insurmontables. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a repete 
a satiete les . expressions « monopolistes ameri
cains » et « classes dirigeantes americaines ». Le 
programme de relevement economique de 
l'Europe n'est pas un programme etabli par les 
monopolistes americains, si ce terme a un sens. 
C 'est, en revanche, un programme etabli par 
les classes dirigeantes .americaines, en d'autres 
termes, par l'ensemble du peuple americain, 
citadins et campagnards, et sans distinction de 
situations sociales, qui tous donnent leur appui 
au programme de relevement economique de 
l'Europe, a cause de l'interet profond et constant 
qu'ils portent a l'Europe. 

Les vues exprimees a la seance precedente par 
le representant de l'Union sovietique auraient 
du avoir pour conclusion logique une proposition 
de suppression de la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe. Car, si les pays d'Europe subissent la 
domination des Etats-Unis autant qu'on l'a dit, 
il est difficile d'imaginer quel role utile la 
Commission peut bien remplir.· Pourtant, tous 
ceux qui ont participe aux travaux de la Commis
sion economique pour l'Europe, notamment au 
sein de ses groupes· de travail, savent pertinem
ment que la Commission constitue une tribune ou 
les nations libres peuvent echanger des rensei
gnements sur leurs programmes, examiner leurs 
problemas communs et etablir des plans d'action 
concertee. Le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis a 
donne son appui le plus sincere a la Commission, 
depuis qu'elle a ete creee. L'orateur rappelle a 
ceux des representants qui ont laisse entendre 

115 



eiapsed since it became operational. In that 
brief period some fifty subsidiary bodies, on 
which had served some 3,000 of the best govern
mental experts in Europe, had been convened 
and had achieved most valuable results. The 
establishment of working parties for such pro~ 
ducts as silica bricks and ceramic insulators, 
which had been slightingly referred to, only indi
cated the extent to which the Commission had 
settied down to its concrete tasks. Any criti
cism made by the Soviet Union representative 
might have had more persuasive force if his coun
try had shown the slightest inclination even to be 
represented at any but the main meetings of the · 
Commission. 

The concern felt by the American people for 
the fortunes of Europe was reflected by United 
States participation in the European Recovery 
Programme and the Economic Commission for 
Europe. It had n:ot been the choice of the United 
States that there should be two distinct organiza
tions; that was an inevitable consequence of the 
refusal of certain countries to participate in the 
European Recovery Programme. There was, 
however, work enough for both organizations. 

He warmly agreed with the representative of 
Poland that the main problem confronting every 
country of Europe was to raise the levels of pro
duction and trade; his statement, however, had 
not done justice to the efforts of many govern
ments, including the Government of Poland. 
There was no disagreement on the final objectives 
and the United States Government hoped that 
both organizations would co-operate in making 
progress towards them. 

Mr. MuNIZ (Brazil) stated that his Govern
ment was greatly impressed with the substantial 
results achieved by the Economic Commission for 
Europe in both the theoretical and the practical 
fields. The Survey of the Economic Situation 
and Prospects of Europe, which fully deserved 
the widespread praise acorded to it for its realis
tic analysis of .the economic situation in Europe 
at that time, would serve as a model for the other 
regional commissions, such as the Economic Com
mission for Latin America, which were now 
attaining or about to attain operational status. 

To a non-European, the Commission's practical 
achievements also appeared solid and concrete. 
Progress had been made towards a rational allo
cation of productive effort. 

But caution should be exercised lest the Eco
nomic Commission for Europe embarked on a 
field of endeavour with which it was not fitted 
to deal and which would entail a prohibitive 
strain on the finances of the United Nations. 
Although no specific provisions to that effect 
were to ·be found in the Commission's rules of 

que l 'action de la Commission n'etait pas vrai
ment efficace, que dix mois seulement se sont 
ecoules depuis qu'elle a commence a fonctionner. 
Au cours de cette breve periode, quelque cin
quante organismes subsidiaires, aux travaux des
quels ont collabore environ 3.000 experts gouver
nementaux figurant parmi les meilleursd'Europe, 
se sont reunis et ont obtemi des resultats tres 
appreciables. La creation de groupes de travail 
pour des produits tels que les briques de silice et 
les porcelaines electrotechniques, dont il a ete fait 
mention dedaigneusement, ne fait que proliver 
a quel point la Commission s'est attachee aux 
taches pratiques qui sont les siennes. Les criti
ques formulees par le representant de l'Union 
sovietique auraient sans doute ete plus persua
dantes, si son pays avait montre la moindre 

. disposition a se faire representer a d'autres reu
nions qu'aux seances plenieres de la Commission. 

L'interet que le peuple americain porte au' sort 
de l'Europe trouve son expression dans la parti
cipation des Etats-Unis au programme de releve
ment economique de l'Europe et aux travaux 
de la Commission economique pour l'Europe. Il 
n'a pas dependu des Etats-Unis qu'il existat deux 
organisations distinctes; c'est la consequence ine
luctable du refus de certains pays de participer 
au programme de relevement economique de 
l'Europe. Il y a du reste assez de besogne pour 
les deux organisations. 

L'orateur est tout a fait de l'avis du repre
sentant de la Pologne quand celui-ci dit que les 
problemes essentiels qui se posent a chaque pays 
d 'Europe sont ceux du relevement du niveau de 
la production et de !'augmentation du volume 

. du commerce; le representant de la Pologne ne 
rend cependant pas justice au.X: efforts accomplis 
par de nombreux ,gouvernements, y compris ie 
Gouvernement polonais. Il n 'y a pas desaccord 
su:r les objectifs finaux a atteindre, et le Gouver
nement des Etats-Unis espere que les deux orga
nisations coopereront pour se rapprocher de ces 
objectifs. 

M. Mumz (Bresil) declare que son Gouverne
ment a ete vivement frappe par les resultats 
substantiels obtenus par la Commission econo
mique pour l'Europe, dans le domaine theorique 
comme dans le domaine .pratique. L'Etude sur 
la situation et les perspectives economiques de 
l' Europe, qui merite entierement les nombreux 
eloges qui lui ont ete decernes pour son analyse 
objective de la situation economique actuelle de 
l 'Europe, servira de modele aux autres commis
sions regionales, telles que la Commission econo
mique pour !'Amerique latine, qui commencent 
ou sont sur le point de commencer leurs travaux. 

Meme pour quelqu 'un qui n 'est pas un Euro
peen, les resultats pratiques obtenus par la 
Commission apparaissent comme importants et 
pratiques. Elle a reussi a repartir de fa«;on plus 
rationnelle les efforts dans le domaine de la pro
duction. 

Mais il faut prendre garde que la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe ne se lance dans des 
tentatives pour lesquelles elle n'est pas faite et 
qui imposeraient une charge excessive aux finan
ces des Nations Unies. Bien qu'aucune disposi
tion formelle ne figure a ce sujet dans le regle
ment interieur de 1a Commission, il serait bon 

116 



procedure, it would do well to establish the 
closest possible contact at working level with 
the other regional economic commissions already 
set up. A more comprehensive picture would 
thus be obtained of economic relations between 
the various regions of the world, and of the pos
sibilities of multilateral trade. The Survey pre
pared by the Economic Commission for Europe 
gave little indic!ltion of the possibilities of adjust
ing the existing European trading position by 
other means than an alteration in the balance of 
trade with the United States. When the Eco
nomic Commission for Latin America became 
fully operational, material would be available for 
a more complete p~cture, which it was especially 
vital to have in view of the rapid economic deve
lopment of that region, which was the source of 
the most important raw materials. The work 
that had already been done by the Economic 
Commission for Europe did, however, justify the 
existence of that organ of the Council in the 
troubled continent of Europe. 

Mr. GELISSEN (Netherlands) stated that the 
Annual Report of the Economic Commission for 
Europe (E/791) confirmed the view of his 
Government that the Commission was achieving 
all that could be expected of it in the existing 
circumstances. The ·work of the Commission, and 
the publications it had issued, had been of excep
tional value, notably in the field of inland trans
port. He hoped that political unsettlement 
would not lead the Commission to abandon the 
course it had thus far successfully followed, and 
by pursuing which it might not only solve eco
nomic problems but bring about a relaxation of 
political tension. 

Two factors were vital in the economic recon
struction of Europe. First, the level of produc
tion must be raised, partly by the pooling of 
resources and the elimination of bottlenecks. 
Secondly, foreign aid was indispensable to pay 
for the imports which were needed to restore 
productive capacity and the balance of payments. 
The first of these needs was partly met by the 
Economic Commission for Europe, and the 
second by the European Recovery Programme. 
Those two projects were therefore complemen
tary, and he could not agree with the Soviet 
Union representative that theywere incompatible. 
Moreover the lack of any working arrangement 
between the Economic Commission. for Europe · 
and the Organization for European Economic Co
operation might have a deleterious effect on the 
work of both. 

· He hardly needed to say that he did· not share 
the views of the Soviet Union representative on 
the underlying motives of the Marshall Plan, nor 
did he think that many representatives would be 
impressed by the arguments used to support those 
yiews, All recipients acknowledged the aid 
·given by the United States Government to be 
·inspired by generous motives, and he was grateful 
for the opportunity to thank the United States 
;J;epresentative; before the Council, for· the help 

qu'elle nouat, dans ses. travaux, les rapports les 
plus etroits possible avec les autres commissions 
economiques regionales deja instituees. Ainsi se 
ferait-on une idee plus complete des relations 
economiques entre les differentes regions du 
monde, et des possibilites qui s'offrent au 
commerce multilateral. L'Etude preparee par 
la Commission economique pour · l'Europe ne 
fournit que peu d 'indications ·sur les moyens de 
retablir la situation commerciale de l'Europe par 
d'autres moyens qu'une modification de la balance 
commerciale avec les Etats-Unis. Lorsque la Com
mission economique pour !'Amerique latine fonc
tionnera · vraiment, on disposera de donnees qui 
donneront un tableau plus complet de la situa
tion. Or, c 'est la une necessite tout a fait vitale, en 
raison du developpement economique rapide de 
cette region, d'ou proviennent les matieres pre
mieres les plus importantes. Mais l'ceuvre deja 
accomplie par la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe justifie !'existence de cet organe du 
Conseil sur ce continent trouble qu'est !'Europe. 

M. GELISSEN (Pays-Bas) declare que le rapport 
annuel de la Commission economique pour 
l 'Europe (E/791) confirme son Gouvernement 
dans l'idee que la Commission accomplit tout ce 
que l'on peut attendre d'elle dans les circons
tances actuelles. Les travaux de la Commission et 
les publications qu'elle a fait paraitre presen
tent un interet exceptionnel, notamment dans le 
domaine des transports interieurs. L'orateur 
espere que l 'incertitude de la situation politi
que n'amenera pas la Commission a abandonner 
la ligne de conduite qu'elle a suivie avec succes 
jusqu'a present et qui lui permettra non seule
ment de resoudre les problemes economiques, 
mais aussi d'amener un relachement de la ten
sion politique. 

Dans la reconstruction economique de l'Europe, 
il existe deux facteurs essentiels. D'abord, le 
niveau de production doit etre releve, en partie 
par la mise en commun des ressources et la sup
pression des goulots d'etranglement. En second 
lieu, il est indispensable qu'une aide exterieure 
permette a !'Europe de payer les importations 
qui lui sont necessaires pour restaurer sa capa
cite de production et equilibrer sa balance des 
paiements. Le premier de ces besoins est satisfait 
partiellement par la Commission economique 
pour l 'Europe, et le second par le programme de 
relevement economique. Les deux entreprises sont 
done complementaires, et l'orateur ne .peut 
admettre que, comme l'estime le representant de 
l'Union sovietique, elles soient incompatibles. En 

· outre, !'absence de tout accord entre la Commis
sion economique pour l'Europe et l 'Organisation 
de . cooperation economique europeenne reglant 
leurs relations de travail pourrait nuire grave
ment a l'ceuvre de l'une et de l'autre. 

L'orateur n'a guere besoin de dire qu'il ne 
partage pas les vues du representant de l'Union 
sovietique sur les mobiles dont s'inspire le plan 
Marshall; il ne pense pas non plus que beaucoup 
de representants soient impressionnes par les 
arguments dont ces vues etaient etayees. Tous 
les pays beneficiaires reconnaissent que l'aide 
fournie par le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis est 
inspiree par des motifs genereux, et l'orateur 
est heureux de !'occasion qui s'offre a lui de 

117 



given to the country and people of the Nether
lands. 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) stated th.at he 
sincerely regretted having to speak a second time 
to answer the misstatements and. false conclu
sions of the Soviet Union representative. It had 
long been his belief and, he thought, that of other 
representatives, that the Economic and Social 
Council would sooner or later have to devise 
some procedure to prevent such attacks and the 
replies they always, and of necessity, provoked. 
The sincerity of that belief was shown by the 
fact that neither in the General Assembly, nor 
in the Council, nor in any of its subsidiary bodies, 
had the Uri!ted Kingdom delegation ever been 
responsible for initiating such propaganda 
attacks. 

It was indeed regrettable that other speakers 
had not been permitted to follow the excellent 
example set by the representatives of France and 
Poland; not that he was in entire agreement 
with them, but they had at least argued soberly 
and as economic experts; in a manner which facili
tated the Council's discussion. He took that 
opportunity of congratulating the Governments . 
of Poland, Czechoslovakia and Yugoslavia on 
the constructive contributions they had made to 
the work or the Economic Commission for 
Europe. 

Although he must needs reply to the Soviet 
Union representative's attack, he would only 
mention the more obvious misstatements and the 
more glaring inconsistencies in that speech, 
which he found it hard to believe expressed the 
real views of so able, active and well-informed a 
man as Professor Arutiunian. He could not, 
for example, believe that Professor Arutiunian 
had not read the bilateral agreements between the 
United States and the countries participating in 
the European Recovery Programme; the agree
ment between the United States and the United 
Kingdom had been published as a Command 
Paper arid was freely available. 

What was perhaps niost disconcerting was the 
number of inconsistencies in the course of a 
single speech. For example, the Soviet Union 
representative had stated flatly that American 
monopolists - he retained the Soviet Union 
representative's term for purposes of identifica
tion - had brought UNRRA to an end because 
that had suited their purposes; they .. had, how
ever, been told later in the same speech that the 
same American monopolists, for the same reasons, 
had been responsible for the European Recovery 
Programme being brought into being. Again, it 
had been said in one passage of the speech· that 
American monopolists were deliberately creating 
dollar starvation; and, in another passage, that 
they were piarining to capture that- same dollar
starved market - an interesting project of 
which he· would have liked to hear more: · The 
Soviet Union representative had told them that 
American monopolists were guaranteed 100% 

remercier, devant le Con8eil, le representant des 
Etats-Unis pour l'aide fournie aux Pays-Bas et 
a leur population. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) declare qu'il 
regrette sincerement de devoir prendre la parole 
une seconde fois pour repondre aux declarations 
erronees et aux conclusions inexactes du repre
sentant de l'Union soyietique .. Depuis longtem.ps 
l'orateur a la conviction, comme d'autres .repre
sentants, a ce qu 'il croit, que le Conseil econo
mique et social devra, tot ou tard, mettre au 
point une procedure permettant d'eviter des atta
ques de ce genre ainsi que les repliques qu'elles 
provoquent toujours, fatalem~nt. Ce qui prouve 
la sincerite de. cette conviction, c'est que, ni a 
1 'Assemblee generale, ni au C0nseil, ni dans 1 'un 
quelconque de ses organes subsidiaires, la dele
gation du Royaume-Uni n'a jamais pris }'initia
tive de telles attaques de propagande. 

L'orateur estime vraiment ·regrettable que 
d'autres orateurs n'aient pas ete autorises a 
snivre l'exemple excellent donne par les repre
sentants de la France et de la Pologne; ce n'est 
pas que l'orateur se rallie entierement a leurs 
points de vue, mais ils ont du moins discute 
posement et comme des experts en questions eco
nomiqnes, d'une maniere qui facilitait les tra
vaux du Conseil.. L'orateur saisit cette occasion 
de feliciter les Gouvernements de la Pologne, de 
la Tchecoslovaquie et de la Y ougoslavie pour 

. les contributions constructives qu 'ils ont appor
tees a l'amvre de la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe. 

Bien qu'il soit contraint de repond~e a l'atta
que du representant de !'Union sovietique, l'ora
teur ne fera etat que des inexactitudes les plus 
evidentes, des illogismes les plus fl.agrants de ce 
discours, dont il a de la peJ.ne a croire qu'il 
exprime le veritable point de vue d'un homme 
aussi capable, actif et bien informe que le pro
fesseur Arutiunian. Il ne peut croire, par exem
ple, que le professeur Arutiunian n'ait pas lu les 
acords bilateraux conclus entre les Etats-Unis et 
les pays participant au programme de relevement 
economique de !'Europe; l'accord entre les Etats
Unis et le Royaume-Uni a ete publie sons fornie 
de Livre blanc et tout le monde pent se le pro
curer. 

Ce qu'il y a peut-etre de plus decon6ertant, 
c'est la quantite d'illogismes contenus dans lin 
seul discours. Par exemple, le representant de 
l 'Union sovietique a declare sans ambages que 
les monopolistes americains - par souci de pre
cision, l'orateur conserve le terme employe .par 
le representant de l'Union sovietique _:._ ont sup
prime l'UNRRA, parce que cela servait leurs des
·seins; au cours du meme discours, le Conseil a 
appris que les memes monopolistes americains 
avaient, pour ies memes raisons, mis sur pied le 
programme de relevemeilt economique . de 
l'Europe. D'autre part, le':Conseil a appris, p:ir 
un certain passage du meine diSco·U.rs, . que 'les 
monopolistes americains. creelit deliberement ilile 
penurie de dollars et, un. peu apres; qu'ils dres
sent un plan pour s'efu.parer de ce menie·marche 
prive de dollars, plan. fort interessant sur leqtiel 
l'orateur, pour sa part; :aurait aime en :appfenafe 
phis long. Le represimtailt de l'Union'sovietique 

11S 



profit on their investments in Europe. The 
Council was indebted to the United States. repre
sentative for his explanation of the workings of 
that part of the European Recovery Act which 
dealt with that guarantee. What it amounted to 
was that the United States Government realised 
that the dollar-starved continent of Europe could 
not hold out great attractions to investors, whiie 
the recovery or production required considerable 
investments, arid had therefore decided to assume 
the risks, in certain .conditions, of United States 
investments in ..Europe; but, he stressed, against 
a local currency account which would remain 
blocked for an indefinite period. 

A further inconsistency. in the speech of 
the Soviet Union representative was revealed, 
when it was recalled that he had at one 
stage complained that American monopolists 
were destroying possible commercial competitors 
in Germany and Japan and that, at another 
stage, he had also considered it a matter of 
concern that the same American monopo
lists were rebuilding industry in Germany and 
Japan. It was true that he had drawn a dis
tinction between heav~r and other industries, but 
it was well known to everyone interested in 
European affairs that it was impossible not only 
to place German industrial production on a 
sound basis, but also to regain the pre-war pro
duction level of Europe, without reconstruction 
of German heavy industry. It was not neces
sary to repeat that measures taken by the British 
authorities to rehabilitate German industry in 
no way conflicted with the agreed policy of demili
tarization. The Soviet Union representative 
was well aware. that the level-of-industry plan 
now being applied in Germany was controlled by 
the yardstick of an annual steel production of 
10.7 million tons. He was also aware that cur
rent steel production was only 45% of that per
mitted level, that coal production was 80% of 
the 1936 figure and textile production only 60%. 
He also knew full well that not until all those 
figures approximated to 100%, could the normal 
economic life of Europe be restored. He 
(Mr. McNeil) would do no more than recall the 
financial burden oil the three Western Occupation 
Powers, incurred by their efforts to restore 
~rman industry, since on that occasion the 
Soviet Union representative had not touched on 
the· financial a8pects of the question. 

. He .felt obliged, however, to reply to some of 
the gross. I~isstatements of fact which had been 
contained in the statement read to them at the 
previous meeting by the Soviet Union representa
tive.: · If as he assumed, the agricultural figures 
had been . taken from the returns of the Orga
nization for European Economic Co-operation, 
:Mr .. AJ,'Utiunian had permitted himself a shabby 
debating: trick by quoting from figures relating 
to acreage. If he had quoted the total produc
tion of foodstuffs given in the report of the Orga
nization· for. European · Economic Co-operation, 

a· declare au Conseil que les monopolistes ameri
cains etaient .assures de tirer de leurs placements 
en Europe un benefice de 100 %. Grace au repre
sentant des Etats-Unis, le Conseil a !'explication 
des clauses de cette partie de la loi sur le releve
ment de l'Europe qui traite de cette garantie. En 
realite, le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis se rend 
compte que le continent europeen, tres pauvre 
en dollars, ne presente guere d'attraits pour 
ceux qui desirent placer des capitaux, alors que 
le relevement de la production n'est possible que 
grace a des investissements considerables. Le 
Gouvernement des Etats-Unis a done decide d'as
sumer, sous certaines conditions, le risque que 
com portent les placements americains en Europe; 
mais, l'orateur insiste ·sur .ce point, cette garantie 
est compensee par un compte en monnaie locale, 
qui restera bloque pendant une periode indefinie. 

On co:ristatera encore un autre illogisme dans 
le discours du representant de l'Union sovietique, 
si l'on se souvient qu'apres avoir i·eproche aux 
monopolistes. americains de . supprimer toute 
concurrence commerciale possible en Allemagne 
et au Japon, il a dit sa crainte de voir les memes 
monopolistes americains restaurer la capacite 
de production industrielle de l'Allema,gne et du 
Japon. Il est vrai que le representant de l'Union 
sovietique a etabli lille distinction entre les indus
tries lourdes et les autres industries, mais nul de 
ceux qui s'interessent aux affaires europeennes 
n'ignore qu'il est impossible non seulement de 
reedifier la production industrielle allemande 
sur nne base saine, mais encore de rendre a 
l'Europe le niveau de production qu'elle connais
sait avant guerre, sans reconstruire l'industrie 
lourde allemande. Il est inutile de redire que les 
mesures prises par les autorites britanniques 
pour remettre sur pied l'industrie allemande ne 
sont nullement en contradiction avec la politique 
convenue de demilitarisation. Le representant 
de l'Union sovietique sait pertinemment que le 
volume de la production du plan actuellement 
applique en Allemagne est conditionne par une 
production annuelle d'acier fixee a 10.700.000 
tonnes. Il sait aussi que la production actuelle 
d 'acier n'atteint que 45 % du volume autorise, 
que la production de charbon atteint seulement 
80 % du chiffre de 1936 et la production des 
textiles 60 % seulement. Il sait aussi fort bien 

·que c'est seulement lorsque ces chiffres seront 
voisins de 100 % que l'Europe pourra retrouver 
sa vie economique normale. L'orateur ne rappel
lera que pour memoire la charge :financiere 
qu'imposent aux trois puissances occidentales 
occupantes les efforts qu'elles font pour restaurer 
l'industrie allemande, puisqu 'en 1 'occurrence, le 
representant de l'Union sovietique n'a pas fait 
allusion aux aspect financiers:. de la question. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni se croit 
cependant tenu de rectifier quelques-unes des 
grosses inexactitudes contenues dans la declara
tion lue au Conseil par le representant de l'Union 
sovietique lors de la seance precedente. Si; comme 
n le suppose, le chiffre relatif a la production 
agricole a ete tire du rapport de !'Organisation 
de cooperation economique europeenne, M. Aru
tiunian s'est permis de recourir a un artifice 
oratoire douteux, en citant les chiffres relatifs 
au total des ·surfaces ensemencees. S'il avait cite 
le. total de la production .. ·des denrees .alimen-

119 



he would have shown that it was designed to be 
increased by 1951. He would have admitted that 
the figures, in the case of France, were part of 
a plan, since modified, by' which France was to 
increase her dairy produce. The representative 
of the Soviet Union need not, however, have 
looked so far afield for statistics, but could have 
quoted from the excellent tables, to which he, 
in common with the whole of the Economic Com
mission for Europe, had already given his appro
val - namely, those contained in the Survey of 
the Econornic Situation and Prospects of Europe. 
He had asserted that, as a result of the Marshall 
Plan, European bread production would decrease 
by 7%, meat production by 15%, and sugar pro
duction by 7%. It appeared, however, from 
Table XXXII in Appendix A of the Survey, that 
of the commodities mentioned by· the Soviet 
Union representative only meat production 
would decrease by 1950/51 in comparison with 
the 1934-1938 average, and that only by 900,000 
metric tons .. Bread production would be 100% 
of the 1934-1938 average, production of coarse 
grains would have increased from 30.5 to 31.8 
million tons, !ats and oils production from 2.8 to 
2.9 million tons, sugar production from 3.4 to 
3.9 million tons and the potato crop which, signifi
cantly enough, had not been mentioned by the 
Soviet Union representative, from 57.7 to 68.2 
million tons. 

He had been most surprised to hear from the 
Soviet Union representative that 15% · of the 
aid supplied by UNRRA had gone to provide 
capital equipment, compared with a figure of 
11% given as the ERP equivalent. Capital 
equipment was in any case a loose term, but he 
saw from the Report of the Director-General of 
UNRRA for April-June 1946 that capital equip
ment, in the broadest sense of the word, had 
accounted for only 1%, and that was natural 
enough in the case of a relief organization. 

The question of control of currency had never 
arisen in the course of discussions on the 
Marshall Plan, nor was it reflected in the bilateral 
agreement between the United States and the 
United Kingdom. Nor was his Government a 
party to any agreement granting most-favoured
nation treatment to Japan. The socialization of 
the Ruhr had in any case no connexion whatso
ever with the European Recovery Programme, but 
the position of His Majesty's Government had 
not in fact undergone such alteration as was sug
gested by the Soviet Union representative. 
Ownership of the Ruhr had been vested in the 
Occupation Authority, and, in accordance with 
democratic practice, the final decision would be 
left to the German people. 

The question of nationalization of the British 
steel industry would be decided solely by the 

taires qu'indique le rapport de !'Organisation de 
Cooperation economique europeenne, il aurait du 
meme coup montre qu 'une augmentation de ce 
total est prevue pour 1951. Il aurait admis alors · 
que les chiffres, en ce qui concerne la France, 
font partie d'un plan, depuis lors modifie, en 
~ertu duquel la France doit augmenter sa pro
duction laitiere. Cependant, le representant de 
l'Union sovietique n'avait pas besoin d'aller cher
cher si loin des statistique,s; il aurait pu citer les 
chiffres portes sur les excellents tableaux qu'il a 
deja approuves, ainsi que les autres membres de la 
Commission economique pour l'Europe, a savoir 
les chiffres de l'Etude sur la situation et les pers
pec.tives econorniques de l'Europe. Le delegue de 
l'Union sovietique a affirme qu'en consequence 
du plan Marshall la production de cereales pani
fiables en Europe allait diminuer de 7 %, la pro
duction de viande de 15 % et la production de 
sucre de 7 %. Mais il ressort du tableau XXXII 
de l'annexe A de l'Etude que, parmi les produits 
mentionnes par le representant de l'Union sovie
tique, seule la production de viande diminuera en 
1950/51 par rapport ala moyenne de 1934-1938, 
et de 900.000 tonnes seuiement. La production 
de cereales panifiables atteindra 100 % de la 
moyenne des annees 1934-1938, la production de 
cereales secondaires passera de 30.500.000 tonnes 
a 31.800.000 tonnes, la production des matieres 
grasses et des oleagineux de 2.800.000 a 2.900.000 
tonnes, la production de sucre de 3.400.000 a 
3.900.000 tonnes, et la production de pommes de 
terre qui - le fait est assez significatif - n'a 
pas ete mentionnee par le representant de I 'Union 
sovietique, de 57.700.000 a 68.200.000 tonnes. 

L'orateur a ete tres surpris d 'apprendre du 
~epresentant de l'Union sovietique que 15% de 
l'aide fournie par l'UNRRA avaient ete consa
cres a des biens de production, alors qu'un chiffre 
de 11 % est donne comme chiffre correspondant, 
pour le programme de relevement economique de 
l'Europe. L'expression « biens de production » 
est, en tout cas, assez vague, mais le rapport du 
Directeur general de l'UNRRA pour la periode 
d'avril a juin 1946 indique que 1 % seulement 
des livraisons consistait en biens de production 
au sens le plus large du mot, ce qui etait assez 
naturel, puisqu'il s'agissait d'une organisation 
de secours. 

La question du controle de la monnaie ne s'est 
jamais posee au cours des discussions sur le plan 
Marshall; il n'y est pas non plus fait allusion 
dans l'accord bilateral conclu entre les Etats
Unis et le Royaume-Uni. Le Gouvernement bri
tannique n'a signe aucun accord tendant a faire 
beneficier le Japon de la clause de la nation la 
plus favorisee. La nationalisation des industJJies 
de la Ruhr n'a, de toute fagon, aucun rapport 
quelconque avec le programme de relevement 
economique de l'Europe, mais c'est un fait que 
la position du Gouvernement de Sa Majeste n'a 
pas subi les changements dont fait etat le repr~
sentant de l'Union sovietique. La propriete .des 
industries de la Ruhr a ete confiee aux autorites 
d'occupation et, conformement a la tradition 
democratique, c'est, en derniere analyse, au peu
ple allemand qu'appartiendra la decision. 

Quant a la question de la nationalisation de 
l'industrie de l'acier ·en Grande-Bretagne;· elle 

120 



British people, acting through their freely elected 
representatives in Parliament. This subject had 
never been raised in discussions with the United 
States Government, nor could any allusion to it 
be read into the bilateral agreement. 

There was equally little foundation for the 
allegation that British shipbuilding activity was 
being restricted by the ERP agreement. If the 
United Kingdom could not produce as much ton
nage that year as it wished, that was due to 
the universal shortage of steel, a problem which 
was being satisfactorily tackled by the Economic 
Commission for Europe. 

It had been alleged that the property of United 
States citizens would be accorded preferential 
treatment and that they would have exclusive 
right of access to the International Court of 
Justice. Article 10 of the agreement between the 
United States and the United Kingdom refuted 
that allegation explicitly. 

The United Kingdom delegation could refute, 
just as clearly, the suggestion that the granting 
of· military bases had arisen in any official dis
cussion or that there was any agreement to that 
effect. 

In the Soviet Union representative's view, the 
bilateral' agreement· between the United States 
arid the United Kingdom had been unilateral1y 
imposed by the United States administration. 
It was perfectly clear from the Press, wnich the 
Soviet Union repr€sentative apparently studied 
with care, since he was able to quote from it, 
that that agreement had been freely negotiated 
over a period of weeks. It had been concluded 
because it was believed to be of advantage to both 
parties, as would be clear from a study of the 
agreement itself arid from perusal of Hansard 
for 5-6 July. In the debate that had taken place 
oli those two days all kinds of searching questions 
had been asked and had received unambiguous 
replies. He hoped that the Soviet Union repre
sentative would consult that readily available 
material before again indulging in criticism of 
the bilateral agreement. 

While he did not agree that the economic 
system of the United States was quite the best 
system in the world, he found. the extravagant 
and liberal use of the term "monopolies" to de
scribe that system strange, in view of the United 
States legislation on the subject. Whatever 
the deficiencies of the American commercial sys
tem, was there a more watertight monopoly than 
the Soviet monopoly of shipping on the Danube ~ 
He hoped that at the conference which would 
shortly take place on that subject, the delegation 
of the Soviet Union would play a leading part in 
taking steps to ensure that there were no monopo-. 
listie practices on that waterway. Was there in 
the United States a greater monopoly of civil 
aviation than the Soviet-Hungarian Air Trans
port Company ~ Moreover, the Sovrom Oil Com
pany was a rigid monopoly, which did not appa
rently benefit the Roumanian people, who should 
be the first beneficiaries.. If the representative of 
the Soviet Union so · wished, he was w1lling to 

sera decidee uniquement par le peuple brita'nni
que, par l'intermediaire de ses represeritants au 
Parlement, · librement elus. Cette question n'a 
jamais ete soulevee au cours des negociations 
avec le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis, et il est 
impossible d 'interpreter aucun passage du texte 
de l'accord bilateral comme y faisant allusion. 

Il est tout aussi errone de pretendre que l'acti
vite des chantiers britanniques de constructions 
navales ait ete restreinte par le programme de 
relevement economique de l'Europe. Si le 
Royaume-Uni n'a pu cette annee atteindre le 
tonnage qu 'il souhaitait, cela est dft a la penqrie 
universelle d'acier, probleme auquel s'attaque 
avec succes la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe. 

Le representant de I 'Union sovietique a pre
tendu que les citoyens americains beneficiaient 
pour leurs biens d 'un traitement preferentiel et 
qu 'ils auraient un droit exclusif de recours au pres 
de la Cour internationale de Justice. L'article 10 
de l'accord entre. les Etats-Unis et le Royaume
Uni fait explicitement justice de cette allegation. 

La delegation du Royaume-Uni peut refuter 
tout aussi nettement !'insinuation selon laquelle 
la cession de bases militaires aurait fait l'objet 
de discussions officielles ou aurait ete sanction-
nee par un accord. . 

A en croire le representant ~e l'Union sovie
tique, l'accord bilateral conclu entre les Etats
Unis et le Royaume-Uni aurait ete· impose de 
fagon unilaterale par le Gouvernement des Etats
Unis. Il ressort a !'evidence des informations de 
presse - que le representant de l'Union sovie
tique semble etudier attentivement, puisqu'il en 
a pu citer des extraits - que cet accoi·d a ete 
librement n~gocie pendant plusieurs semaines. 
Il a ete conclu, parce qu'il a ete juge avahtageux 
pour les deux parties, comme le montrent l'etude 
de l 'accord lui-meme et la lecture des 'comptes 
rendus officiels des debats parlementaires des 
5 et 6 juillet. Au cours du debat qui a eu lieu 
ces deux jours-la, toutes sortes de questions ser
rees ont ete posees et ont regu des reponses sans 
ambigui:te. L'orateur espere que le repriisentant 
de l'Union sovietique prendra connaisance de 
cette documentation aisement accessible avant 
de se livrer de nouveau a des critiques contre 
l'accord bilateral. 

L'orateur ne reconnait pas absolument le 
systeme economique des Etats-Unis comme le 
meilleur du monde, mais il trouve etrange, etant' 
donne la legislation des Etats-Unis en la matiere, 
qu'on emploie inconsiderement et a tout propos 
le terme « monopoles » . pour caracteriser ce 
systeme. Quels que soient les defauts·du.Bysteme 
commercial americain, existe-t::il un m1,mopole 
plus hermetique que le monopole sovietique sur 
la navigation danubienne ? L'orateur espere qu'a 
la conference qui doit bientot se tenir a ce sujet, 
la delegation de l'Union sovietique sera en tete 
de ceux qui proposeront des mesures tendant· a 
assurer la suppression de toutes pratique!'; ayant 
un caractere de monopole sur le Danube. E:~dste
t-il aux Etats-Unis un monopole de !'aviation 
civile plus caracterise que celui de la Soci~ete des 
transports aeriens sovieto-hongrois ? En: outre, 
la Societe petroliere Sovrom est un rigpureux 
monopole qui apparemmeri.t ne profite j)as au 
peuple rouniain, lequel devrait en etre lE,~ prin-

i21 



pursue the subject of the monopolies; but he was 
not anx:ious to do so, since it would in no way 
forward the work of the Council. 

He congratulated the Soviet Union represen
tative on his championship of small-holders. The 
fate of small-holders in the Soviet Union ·was 
welllmown, but ·that was_ not the Council's busi
ness. · However, he had difficulty in reconciling 
the statement of the Soviet Union representative 
with a memorandum recently addressed by the 
Cominform to the Yugoslav Communist Party, 
which read: 

"Such views of the part of the leading 
officials of the Communist Party of Yugoslavia 
cannot but be termed hazardous and lin-Marx
ist, for this task cannot be solved so long as 
individual farming e_$lonomy prevails in the 
country and conditions have not been pre
pared for a mass collectivization of farming, 
and so long as the· majority of working farmers 
have not been convinced of the advantages of 
collective methods of farming." 

He thought that the Council might have been 
spared the remarks _on the $oviet Union's constant 
concern for the independence and sovereignty 
of European nations. The United Kingdom 
Government felt that each nation had the right 
to decide, by international agreements and by 
securing reciprocity, what aspects of sovereignty 
it might wish to renounce in return for some 
other advantages. He could not reconcile with 
the remarks of the Soviet Union representative 
the exchange of statements between Belgrade and 
other capitals and the statement of the Comin
form that "The Yugoslav leaders, vastly over
estimating the internal natural resources and 
potentialities of Yugoslavia, think they can pre
serve the independence of Yugoslavia and estab
lish socialism without the support of the Commu
nist parties of other countries, without the sup
port of the countries of popular democracy, and 
without the support of the Soviet Union". It 
appeared that not only were the- Yugoslavs not 
permitted to act without the approval of the 
Cominform, they were not even allowed to think 
that they were capable of doing their own work. 

With regard to the substance of the question 
really before the Council, there was, first, the prob
lem of the credit and capital plant needed for 
development and rehabilitation. _ The represen
tative of France had said. that it_ should come 
as a result of an increase in. trade. - That might 
apply >in the case 6f some count1;ies, but he felt 
that it would be unfortunate if there was no 
credit scheme for the development and rehabili
tation of European countries, although there was 
of course a limit to the credit and capital plant 
available. The representative of -the - Soviet 
Union had said that.he approved of normal com
mercial credit methods ; but it was not the bor
rowers who alone laid down the terms for. cre
dits; In_-the ease -of tlie credit granted by the 

cipal beneficiaire; · Si le representant- de l'Union 
sovietique le desire, l'orateur est dispose a trai
ter plus longuement la question des monopoles, 
encore qu'il ne tienne pas a le faii·e, car cela ne 
saurait en rien faire progresser les ·travaux du 
Conseil. 

Il felicite le representant de l'Union sovietique 
de s'etre fait le champion des petits exploitants 
agricoles. Le sort de ceux-ci en Union sovietique 
est bien connu mais ce n'est pas la !'affaire du 
Conseil. Cependant, l'orateur a du mal a conci
lier la declaration du representant de l'Union 
sovietique et une certaine note recemment adres
see par le Kominform au parti communiste you
goslave, dans laquelle on lit ceci : 

« De telles opinions venant des principaux 
dirigeants du parti communiste de Y ougo
slavie ne' peuvent etre qualifiees que de dange-

. reuses et contraires a la doctrine marxiste, car 
la tache a accomplir ne peut etre menee a bien 
tant qu'une economic agricole individti.elle 
existe dans ce pays et que le terrain n'a pas 
ete prepare pour une collectivisation massive 
de !'agriculture et tant que la majorite des 
cultivateurs n'auront pas ete convaincus des 
-a vantages que presentent les methodes collec
tives d'exploitation agricole. » 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni estime qu'on 
aurait pu epargner au Conseil l~s allusions a 
!'interet constant que- l'Union sovietique porte 
a l 'independance et a la souverainete des nations 
europeennes. Le Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni 
croit que toute nation a le droit de decider, au 
moyen d'accords internationaux et en s'assurant 
la reciprocite, quels sont les elements de sa sou
verainete auxquels elle veut bien renoncer en 
echange d'autres avantages. Mais il ne peut 
concilier les observations presentees par le repre
sentant de l'Union sovietique avec l'echange de 
notes qui a eu lieu entre Belgrade et d'autres 
capitales pas plus qu'avec la declaration du 
Kominform selon laquelle- « les dirigeants you
goslaves, _en surestimant considerablement les 
ressources naturelles interieures et les possibili
tes d'avenir de la Yougoslavie, croient pouvoir 
preserver l'independance de la Yougoslavie et 
edifier le socialisme sans l'appui des partis com
munistes des autres pays, sans l'appui des demo
craties populaires et sans l'appui de l'Union 
sovietique ». Il parait evident maintenant, non 
seulement que les Yougoslaves ne- sont pas auto
rises a agir sans !'approbation du Kominform, 
mais encore qu 'ils n'ont meme pas la permission 
de se croire capables de faire leur propre travail. 

Quant au fond de la question qui interesse 
vraiment le Conseil, le premier probleme qui se 
pose est celui des credits et du materiel de pro
duction necessaires au -developpement et a la 
reconstruction. Le representant de la France a 
deClare que ces .besoins seront satisfaits par uh 
accroisseinent du- volume des echanges commer
ciaux. Cela peut etre vrai de certains pays, mais 
le -representant du- Royamrie-Uni estime cj_u'il 
serait regrettable qu'il n'exist8,t -alicun _plan- de 
credits pour le developpemeht et la reconstrtlc~ 
tion economiques -des pays europeens, bien 'que 
les disponibilites en credits et en_ materiel _ de 
production soient naturellernent limitees. _ Le 
representant de l'Union sovietique a declare :qu'il 
approuvait les methodes normale!{ de credit com. 

122 



Soviet Union to Poland, he did not imagine that 
the terms had been laid down by Poland; or that 
they had been laid down by the Soviet Union; 
presumably the two governments had held 
conversations to determine the conditions 
mutliallY most advantageous .which, in his view, 
were also advantageous to the rest of Europe. It 
was by comparable methods that the ERP agree-
m(mts had been concluded.' . . 

. . 

As had already been pointed out by the repre
sentative of the United States of America, the 
Soviet. Union delegation was not the only one 
which regretted the difference in the composition 
of the Economic Commission ·for Europe and 
the group of countries taking part in the Euro
pean Recovery Programme, but the Soviet Union 
Government was solely responsible for that dif
ference. The United Kingdom Government, by 
its. actions, had shown its desire for the promo
tion of trade between the Eastern and Western 
countries of Europe. The Soviet Union repre
sentative had, at the previous meeting, accused 
certain governments of not supporting the Eco
nomic Commission for Europe. The United 
Kingdom Government had sent highly qualified 
personnel to the meetings of the Commission and 
its subsidiary bodies, but felt that they did not 
deserve. thanks for that, since the Commission 
was mutually useful to all countries of Europe. 
The. United Kingdom Government would con
tinue to support the Economic Commission for 
Europe and to participate in its work on the har
monious and profitable terms which it had achieved 
throughout the past year. The United Kingdom 
Government's actions would prove its concern for 
the "broad, popular masses". It was endeavour
ing to improve the lot of the 500,000 Greeks -
shepherds, fishermen, tradesmen, etc. - who had 
been driven from their homes. Had the repre
sentative· of the Soviet Union, in quoting his 
figures on the reduction of the cultivated acreage 
in Europe, made allowance ·for the reduction in 
Greece ? He hoped that the Government of the 

. Soviet Union would use any instrument, includ
ing ·the Economic Commission for Europe, to 
improve the lot of those "broad, popular masses" 

Mr. BoRBERG (Denmark) said.· that inter
national bodies needed time in which to organize 
themselves before they began practical business, 
but the Economic Commission-for Europe had been 
surprisingly quick in. starting work on practical 
tasks .. That was due to the spirit of co-operation 
within the bodies of the Commission, and to the 
able assistance of Mr. Myrdal, its Executive 
Secre~ary, and his competent staff. Those bodies 
had tackled c:urrent problems, in particular bottle
neck problems such as steel production, and 
they had also begun work on long-term problems. 
The Commission constituted a forum for discus
sion between. th~ East an~. West of Europe: 

mercial; mais ce ne sont pas les emprunteurs 
seulement qui fixent les conditions d 'ouverture 
des credits. En ce qui concerne les credits accor
des ala Pologne par l'Union sovietique, l'orateur 
ne pense pas que les conditions aient ete fixees par 
la Pologne, ni qu'elles aient ete fixees par l'Union 
sovietique; vraisemblablement, les de~ Gouver
nements ont pr<;>cede a des pourparlers pour 
determiner les conditions. les plus avantageuses 
pour les deux parties et; a ce qu'il croit, egale
ment avantageuses pour le reste de 1'Europe. 
c 'est par des methodes analogues que 1 'a'ccord sur 
le programme . de relevement economique de 
1 'Europe a. ete conclu. 

Comme l'a deja fait -remarquer le represen
tant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, la del~~ation de 
l'Union sovietique n'est pas la seule a regretter 
que la composition de la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe. so it differente. de. celle di1 groupe 
de pays qui participent au programme1 de rele
vement economique de l'Europe, mais c'est le 
Gouvernement de 1 'Union soVietique qui porte 
seulla responsabilite de cette diff€rence .. Le Gou
vernement du Royaume-Uni, a donne par ses 
actes la preuve du desir qui l'anime de voir se 
developper les echanges commerciaux entre les 
pays de l'Est et les pays de l'Ouest de l'Europe. 
Le representant de l'Union sovietique, a la seance 
precedente, a accuse certains gouvernements de ne 
pas donner leur appui a la Commission econo
mique pour I 'Europe. Le Gouvernement du 
Royaume-Uni a delegue des representa:nts hau
tement qualifies aux reunions de la Commission et 
de ses organismes subsidiaires, mais il ne croit pas 
meriter de remerciements pour cela, puisque la 
Commission presente une utilite commune pour 
tous les pays de l'Europe. Le GouverneJ_rnent du 
Royaume-Uni continuera a accorder son soutien 
a la Commission economique pour l'Europe et a 
participer a ses travaux avec autant. de bonne 
volonte et de profit qu'au cours de l'ari.nee qui 
vient de s'ecouler. Les decisions du Gouvernement 
du Royaume-Uni feront la preuve de '!'interet 
qu'il porte aux « grandes masses populaires ». II 
s'efforce actuellement d'ameliorer le ~ort des 
500.000 Grecs - bergers, pecheurs, pet.its com
merc;ants, etc; - qui ont ete chasses de chez eux. 
Le representant de l'Union sovietique, en 1.:lonnant 
les chiffres relatifs a la reduction des surfaces 
cultuvees en Europe, a-t-il tenu compt'e de la 
diminution qui s'est produite en Grece ? L!e repre
sentant du Royaume-Uni espere que le Gouverne
ment de l'Union sovietique emploiera tous les ins
truments, y compris la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe, pour ameliorer le sort 1. de ces 
« grandes masses populaires ». 

M. BoRBERG (Danemark) constate qu'alors qu'il 
faut generalement aux institutions internatio
nales · un. certain temps . pour s'organiser avant 
de commencer a faire reuVI'e pratique, l'a Com~ 
mission economique pour l'Europe s'est, a;vec une 
rapidite surprenante, attaquee a ses tacHes prac 
tiques. Ce resultat est du a l'esprit de coopera~ 
tion qui regne a l'interieur des organism/~ de la 
Commission et a la competence de M. Jlfyrdal, 
son Secretaire executif, ainsi qu'a son personnel 
qualifie. Ces organismes ont aborde les problemes 
de l'heure et notamment celui des goulots d'etran-

• . I 
glement de la production~:: par exemp~e dans ··le 
domaine de l'acier, et ils ont ·egaleroent er,ttrepris 

123 



At the previous meeting of the Council, the 
Soviet Union representative had proposed that 
the Commission should undertake work in new 
fields. He had not yet received the text of those 
proposals, but at the first hearing they had 
appeared to him to be very similar to the pro
posals which the Soviet Union representative had 
made during the third session of the Commission. 
At that session, the Conimission had dealt with 
those proposals by agreeing, after a long dis
cussion, to set up an Ad Hoc Committee on Agri
cultural Problems; scheduled to meet on 8 Sep
tember 1948, and another Ad Hoc Committee, 
scheduled to meet in September 1948, which was 
instructed to examine functions which the ECE 
might appropriately undertake in order to pro
mote industrial reconstruction and development 
and expand international trade, taking into con
sideration the proposals of the Soviet Uriion 
representative. 1 Since he had not been able to 
examine the text of the proposals made at the 
previous meeting, 2 he urged that, in conformity 
with rule 60 of the Council's rules of procedure, 
discussion of the proposals should be postponed 
.until twenty-four hours after they had been cir
culated in writing. 

The representative of the Soviet Union had 
. stated at the previous meeting that the purpose 

of the Marsha11 Plan was to prevent· an economic 
crisis in the United States of America; without 
being in a position to judge whether such a crisis 
was. actually looming ahead or not, there was 
surely nothing objectionable in a government's 
attempt to prevent an economic crisis within its 
territory ? If, in so doing, the United States 
Government accelerated the economic recovery 
of Europe, two vital objectives would be attained 
by one and the same 'effort. He wished to refute 
the allegation that the Danish Government had 
entered into negotiations with the United States 
Government inspired by fear. The negotiations 
between Denmark and the United States of 
America were negotiations between two democra
tic countries. Denmark was accepting help from 
the United States as from a big brother, not in 
a sentimental sense, but in the normal way that 
an elder brother helped his younger brother to 
stand on his own feet. · 

Mr. WILGRESS (Canada) said that Canada was 
not a member of the Economic Commission for 
Europe but Canadians were deeply interested in 
its activities, because they clearly realized that 
without a healthy and prosperous Europe, it 
was impossible to achieve a healthy and pros
perous world economy. Canada still believed in 
the advantages of international specialization. 
Its domestic and foreign policies. eni.phasized the 
restoration of multilateral trade, the return to 
convertible currencies, the· restoration of devas
tated areas and the development of the under-

1 See Supplement No. 10, 'pages 36-40. 
2 See document E/884/Rev.l. 

l'etude des problemes a long terme. La. Commis
sion constitue une tribune de discussion entre 
l'Est et l'Ouest de l'Europe. 

A la precedente seance du Conseil, le repre-. 
sentant de l'Union sovietique a propose que l'acti
vite de la Commission s'oriente vers de nouveaux 
domaines. L'orateur n'a pas encore re~u commu
nication du texte de ces propositions, mais, a les 
entendre pour la premiere fois, il les a jugees 
tres semblables aux propositions presentees a la 
troisieme session de la Commission, par le repre
sentant de l 'Union sovietique. A cette session, 
la Commission a donne suite a ces propositions, 
en decidant, a pres. de longs debats, de constituer 
un Comite special des problemes agricoles, qui 
doit se reunir le 8 septembre 1948, et un autre 
Comite special, qui doit se reunir en sep" 
tembre 1948 et qui aura pour tache d'examiner 
les fonctions que la CEE pourrait, a juste 
titre, assumer afin d'aider a la reconstruction 
industrielle et au developpement, ainsi qu'a 
l'accroissement du volume du commerce interna
tional, en tenant compte des propositions du repre
sentant de l'Union sovietique 1. L'orateur n'a pas 
encore ete en mesure d'examiner le texte des pro
positions presentees au cours de la seance prece
dente 2; il demande que, conformement a I' ar
ticle 60 du reglement interieur du Conseil, la 
discussion de ces propositions ait lieu vingt
quatre heures apres que le texte en aura ete 
communique par ecrit. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a declare 
a la seance precedente que le plan Marshall avait 
pour but d'eviter une crise economique aux Etats
Unis; sans etre a meme de dire si une crise de cet 
ordre menace vraiment les Etats-Unis, le repre
sentant du Danemark estime qu'il n'y a certes 
rien de blamable dans le fait qu'un gouverneinent 
s'efforce de conjurer une crise economique sur 
son territoire. En procedant ainsi, le Gouver
nement des Etats-Unis accelere le relevement 
economique de l'Europe, deux objectifs essentiels 
seront ainsi atteints au prix d 'un seul et meme 
effort. L'orateur tient a refuter !'allegation selon 
laquelle le Gouvernement du Danemark aurait, 
sous l'empire de la peur, entame des negociations 
avec le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis. Les nego
ciations entre le Danemark et les Etats-Unis se 
deroulent entre deux pays democratiques. Le 
Danemark accepte l'aide des Etats-Unis comme 
celle d'un grand frere, non PI!-S par sentimenta
lite, mais parce qu'il est parfaitement normal 
qu'un frere aine aide un frere cadet a se tenir 
de bout. 

M. WILGRESS (Canada) rappelle que le Canada 
ne fait pas partie de la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe; toutefois les Canadiens s'inte
ressent vivement a l'activite de cet organisme, 
parce qu'ils comprennent parfaitement que sans 
une Europe saine et prospere, il est impossible 
que l'economie mondiale devienne saine et pros
pere. Le Canada persiste a croire aux avantages 
de la specialisation internationale. Sa politique 
interieure et etrangere tend essentiellement au 
retablissement des echanges multilateraux, au 
retour a la convertibilite des monriaies, a la 

1 Voir le supplement n• 10, pages 36-40. 
2 Voir document E(~84/Rev.l. 

124 



developed areas of the world. In pursuit .of 
these policies Canada relied heavily on her 
exports, of which a large proportion went to 
Europe. The Canadian delegation had read with 
considerable satisfaction not only the report on 
the Commission's achievements but also the excel
lent Survey of the Economic Situation and Pros
pects of Europe. He hoped that the pattern of 
activities so ably begun might successf1:uly be 
brought to fruition. However, important obsta
cles, not only economic but also political, loomed 
large on the horizon. Those obstacles had been 
indicated already in the current debate; he would 
not air his opinions on them, but he hoped that 
the views expressed might not, in the long run, 
prove irreconcilable. 

There were other less critical aspects, which 
were quite as important to the future of all regio
nal commissions, not only of the Economic Com
mission for Europe, which was the first to be 
discussed at the· current session of the Council. 
He wished to indicate certain pitfalls which he 
hoped could be avoided in the future, but, in 
doing so, he in no way criticized the previous 
activities of the regional commissions. The 
Canadian delegation had always feared that the 
regional commissions might adopt an excessively 
regional point of view, that their mentality might 
become too introspective and their objectives too 
narrow, and that ever-present and inherent ten
dencies to,vards the development of economic 
autarky might be aggravated. He hoped it was 
true that the Economic Commission for Europe 
was aware of, and intended to counteract, any 
such tendencies, but there were very few explicit 
references in its report to the importance of direct 
relations between Europe and the rest of the 
world. There was some·evidence of opposite ten
dencies in the report and in the statements of some 
European representatives during the current 
debate. Such feelings were growing in certain 
quarters. He ·supported the view expressed by 
the representative of New Zealand that the proper 
relationship between regional commissions and 
functional commissions of the Council was an 
important and urgent problem. If their activi
ties were properly co-ordinated and integrated, 
important results would ensue. The representa
tive of France had contrasted the failures of the 
Economic and Employment Commission with the 
more apparent success of the Economic Commis
sion for Europe. It was unjustifiable to imply 
that that was due to the superiority of one form 
of organization over the other. The Canadian 
Government believed that if there was an impor
tant role for the regional commissions there was 
an equally great and possibly greater role for the 
functional commissions. 

He had no desire to limit the reasonable deve
lopment of the functions of regional commissions 
along the Jines decided. upon by the Economic 
and Social Council, but their activities involved 

reconstrnctiob. des regions devastees et au deve
loppement des regions du monde insu.ffisamment 
developpees. Pour realiser cette poli.tique, le 
Canada compte beaucoup sur ses exp'ortations, 
dont une bonne part vont en Europe. La dele
gation du Canada a lu avec beaucoup

1 
de satis

faction non seulement le rapport sur les resultats 
obtenus par la Commission, mais aussi l 'excellente 
Etude sur la situation et les perspectives econo
miques de l'Europe. Le representant du Canada 
espere que le programme d 'activites si habilement 
amorce pourra etre execute avec succes. Cepen
dant de gros obstacles d'ordre economique aussi 
bien que politique surgissent a l 'horizon. Ces 
obstacles ont deja ete mentionnes au cours du 
debat actuel; l'orateur ne formulera pas d'opi
nion a leur sujet, mais il ~xprime l'espoir. qu'a 
la longue, il ne sera peut-etre pas impossible de 
concilier les points de vue qui se sont fait jour. 

La situation actuelle presente d'autres aspects, 
moins critiques, qui sont tout aussi importants 
non seulement pour l'avenir de la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe, la premiere dont le 
Conseil etudie l'activite au cours de cette session, 
mais pour toutes les commissions regionales. 
L'orateur tient a signaler certains ecueils dont il 
espere qu'ils pourront etre evites a l'avenir, mais, 
en les signalant, il ne veut en aucune maniere 
critiquer l'amvre accomplie jusqu'a ce jour par 
les commissions regionales. La delegation du 
Canada a toujours craint que les commissions 
regionales n'adoptent un point de vue trop etroi
tement regional, que leur fagon de voir ne 
de;:ienne trop instrospective et leurs objectifs trop 
bornes, et que les tendances naturelles et tou
jours actives au developpement de l 'autarcie eco
nomique ne s'en trouvent ag,gravees. Le represen
tant du Canada espere qu'il est bien exact que la 
Commission economique pour l'Europe connait 
ces tendances et qu'elle se propose de reagir 
contre elles, mais il doit constater que son rap
port ne contient guere de references explicites a 
!'importance que presentent les relations directes 
entre l'Europe et le reste du monde. Le rapport 
et les declarations faites par certains represen
tants des pays europeens pendant le debat en 
cours revelent certaines tendances opposees. Ces 
tendances prennent plus de force dans certains 
milieux. L'orateur appuie l'opinion exprimee par 
le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande, a savoir 
que l'ajustement des relations necessaires entre 
les commissions regionales et les commissions 
techniques du Conseil constitue un probleme 
important et urgent. Si les activites des unes et 
des autres sont bien coordonnees et harmonisees, 
on obtiendra des resultats importants. Le repre
sentant de la France a souligne le contraste entre 
les echecs de la Commission des questions econo
miques et de l'emploi et les succes plus evidents 
de la Commission economique pour l'Europe. 
Rien ne permet d'en inferer que cela soit du a 
la superiorite d'une forme d'organisation. sur 
1 'autre. Le Gouvernement du Canada estime que, 
si les commissions r~gionales ont un role impor
tant a joiler, les commissions techniques ont un 
rOle tout aussi grand et peut-etre plus grand 
encore. 

Le representant du Canada ne souhaite nulle
ment limiter le developpement normal des fonc
tions des commissions regionales dans ·le' sens 
fixe par le Conseil economique et social; ·mais il 

125 



certain important practical considerations. It 
was becoming evident that the regional commis
sions covered a field of activity which was assu
ming increasing importance in the range of 
United Nations projects. They represented an 
increasing and continued drain on the adminis
trative and financial resources of the United 
Nations and its Member Governments .. He had 
no desire to criticise the previous activities of 
any of the regional commissions on purely budge
tary grounds. That aspect of the matter· had 
.been debated at length and the Council had 
agreed 1 that for the time being, at least, ad
ministrative expenses of the commissions were a 

. proper charge on the budget of the United 
Nations. So far they had created no particular 
difficulties, but the activities of the commissions 
were expanding .. Two :further commissions had 
already been created and another was under 
consideration; the amount of their expenditure 
therefore constituted a problem of growing 
importance. It was becoming increasingly diffi
cult, but also necessary, to mark a clear dividing 
line between administrative expenses to be borne 
by the United Nations, and operational or execu
tive expenses, which he believed should be borne 
by the countries deriving the most direct benefits 
from them. Although the Fifth Committee of 
the General Assembly had the main responsibility 
for examining and taking decisions upon the 
financial aspects of all United Nations activities, 
the General Assembly would need the guidance 
of the Council if it was to deal with those 
questions in a rational and objective manner. 
The Council should decide what steps should 
be taken to distinguish clearly between those 
of the Commission's expenses which were a 
proper charge on the United Nations budget 
and those which were not. Unless the question 
was faced soon, it would rise up to plague the 
Council in the not too distant future. 

In 1951, when the whole subject of regional 
commissions was to be reconsidered, one of the 
factors affecting the attitude of, at least, some 
members of the Council would be the achieve
ments of commissions in relation to their cost. 
Canada had always expressed reservations regard
ing the concept of regional commissions, but was 
pr~pared to be convinced by concrete achieve
ments at a reasonable cost, and therefore hoped 
that every effort would be made to deal with 
the question of the division of expenses in a rea
sonable manner. He would appreciate expres
sions of opinion on the question from the other 
inembers of the Couricil during the session, and 
if there appeared to be general agreement with 
his point of view, he would be willing to submit 
a draJt resolution when the Council came to 
con,sider the financial implications of its deci
sions. 

1 See Economic ana Social CounCil :Resolutions, reso· 
lution 36 (IV), parit. 15; 37 (IV), para. 8, and 106 (VI), 
·para. 13. · 

tient a souligner que leur action met en jeu cer
taines considerations importantes d'ordre pra
tique. Il apparait de plus en plus nettement que 
l 'activite des commissions regionales prend une 
importance croissante dans la serie des plans. mis 
en omvre par !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Elles imposent une charge de plus en. plus 
lourde aux ressources administratives et finan
cieres de l 'Organisation des Nations Unies et des 
Gouvernements qui en sont Mel}lbres. Pour sa 
part, l'orateur ne tient pas du tout a critiquer 
pour des motifs purement budgetaires l'activite 
anterieure de telle ou telle commission regionale. 
Une longue discussion a deja eu lieu a ce sujet 
et le Conseil a decide 1 que, provisoirement du 
moins, il etait legitime que les depenses adminis
tratives de la Commission fussent supportees par 
le budget de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Jusqu'a present, aucune difficulte particuliere ne 
s'est presentee a cet egard, mais les commissions 
etendent le champ de leur activite. Deux nou
velles commissions ont deja ete creees et il est 
question d'e:1 creer une autre;. le montant de 
leurs depenses constitue done un probleme d'une 
importance grandissante. Il devient sans cesse 
plus difficile, mais aussi plus necessaire, de tracer 
nettement la ligne de demarcation entre. les 
depenses administratives, que doit supporter 
l 'Organisation des Nations Unies, et les depenses 
entrainees par l'execution des decisions prises, 
dont l'orateur estime qu'elles devraient etre sup
portees par les pays qui en tirent directement le 
plus de profit. Bien qu'il appartienne au premier 
chef a la Cinquieme Commission de 'l'Assemblee 
generale d'examiner, sous l 'angle financi.er, toutes 
les activites de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, 
et d'en decider, l'Assemblee generale aura 
besoin des avis du Cons·eil, si elle veut s'occuper 
de cette question de fa~on rationnelle et objec
tive. Le Conseil doit fixer les mesures qu'il y a 
lieu de prendre pour distinguer nettement entre 
les depenses de la Commission qui doivent etre 
normalement imputees sur le budget de !'Organi
sation des Nations Unies, et celles qui ne doivent 
pas l'etre. Si le Conseil n'aborde pas bientot cette 
question, elle se posera avec acuite pour lui dans 
un avenir assez proche. 

En 1951, lorsque l'ensemble du probleme des 
commissions regionales sera reexamine, l'un des 
facteurs qui dicteront !'attitude de quelques-uns 
au moins des membres du Conseil sera le rapport 
entre les resultats obtenus par les commissions et 
les depenses qu'elles entrainent. Le Canada a 
toujours fait des reserves sur la notion meme de 
commission regionale, mais il est tout dispose a se 
laisser convaincre par des realisations concretes 
qui ne soient pas trop couteuses, et c 'est pourquoi 
il espere que rien ne sera neglige pour resoudre, 
de fa~on raisonnable, le probleme de la reparti
tion des depenses. Le representant du Canada 
sera heureux d'entendre -les autres membres du 
Conseil exprimer leur opinion sur cette question 
pendant la session en cours et il est dispose, s'il 
apparait que, dans l 'ensemble, les representants 
partagent son avis, a presenter un projet de reso
lution lorsque le Conseil en arrivera a l'examen 
des incidences financieres de ses decisions. 

1 Voir E6solutions au Conseil 6conomique et social, 
36 (IV), para. 15; 37 (IV), para. 8, et 106 (VI), para. 13. 

126 



He endorsed the aims, objectives and activities 
of the Economic Commission fo~ Europe. . He 
did not desire to minimize the achievements o;f 
the Commission but would like to see it even 
more successful in the future. He hoped that 
when political dissension, which had been all too 
evident during the . current debate, had died 
down, the major obstacles to the Commission's 
activities would bE;l eliminated. The Commission 
had an important part to play in stimulating eco
nomic . reconstruction and development and all 
other forms of economic co-operation which were 
essential to world recovery. He congratulated 
it on its achievements so far. 

Mr. NuRELGIN. (Turkey) wished to place on 
record his recognition of the meritorious efforts 
exerted by the Economic Commission for Europe 
and by its Executive Secretary, in the cause of 
European recovery. 

Mr. Boms (France) stated, in reply to a 
remark by the Canadian representative, that he 
had not wished to contrast the failure of the Eco
nomic and Employment Commission with the 
success achieved by the regional commissions. 
He had wished to emphasise that the co-existence 
of those two types of body necessitated a revisiop. 
of the terms of reference given to the functional 
Economic and Employment Commission at a time 
when the regional commissions did not exist; he 
recalled that he had supported the New Zealand 
delegation's suggestion that the functional com
missions should be given the ;task of co-ordinating 
the activities of the regional commissions. 

He regretted that instead of dealing. with the 
work of the Economic Commission for Europe, 
the Council had, as a result of the Soviet Union 
representative's speech, entered into a discusion 
on the Marshall Plan. That Plan-- was, indeed, 
a matter which no one could call in question, 
since the aid it was to provide would clearly save 
Europe from a disaster that would have been 
inevitable but for the generous act of the United 
States of America. 

He wished to take up, as objectively as pos
sible, two points in the Soviet Union represen
tative's speech. The latter had referred to 
French newspaper articles which had criticized 
certain clauses in the bilateral agreements. He 
thanked the Soviet Union representative for 
proving by quotations from those articles that 
France had maintained her independence; The 
newspaper articles in question were published 
prior to the conclusion of the bilateral agree
ments and hence did not take account of the 
clauses· on full reciprocity and denunciation 
rights .. He added that the Soviet Union repre
sentative need not feel any concern for France, 
which had been in just as difficult circumstances 
in the past. She was sufficiently jealous of her 
independence for there to be no fear that she 
might surrender it in the. course of free discus
sions with friendly nations, who had so often 
shown in the past that the independence. of 
France was dear to them. 

L 'orateur approuve les buts, les objectifs et 
l'activite de la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe. Il ne veut pas diminuer !'importance 
des resultats Qbtenus par la Commission, mais il 
serait heureux. que l'action de celle-ci fut encore 
plus efficace a Payenir. Il espere que, lorsque se 
seront apaisees les .dissensions politiques qui ne 
se sont que trop manifestees pendant le· debat en 
com·s, les principaux obstacles qui entravent !'ac
tion de la Commission seront supprimes. La 
Commission a un role important a jouer : elle 
doit stimuler la reconstruction et le developpe
ment de l'economie et encourager toutes les autres 
formes de collaboration economique, qui sont 
indispensables au relevement du monde. L'ora
teur felicite la Commission des resultats qu'elle 
a deja obtenus. 

M. NURELGIN (Turquie) tient a marquer qu'il 
reconnait les efforts meritoires deployes par la 
Commission economique pour l'Europe et par son 
Secretaire executif au service du relevement de 
l'Europe. 

M. BORIS (France)' repondant a une observa
tion du representant du Canada, dit qu'il n 'a pas 
voulu opposer l'insucce~ de la Commission des 
questions economiques et de .l'emploi au 'succes 
remporte par les commissions regionales. Il a 
voulu souligner que la coexistence de ces deux 
sortes d'organismes rend necessaire une revision 
du inandat qui a ete donne ala Commission tech
nique des questions economiques et de l'emploi, a 
une epoque ou les commissions regionales n'exis
taient pas; il rappelle qu'il a donne son appui a 
la proposition de la delegation de la Nouvelle
Zelande tendant a charger les commissions tech
niques de la coordination des activites des com
missions regionales. 

L'orateur regrette qu'au lieu de s'occuper des 
travaux de la Commission economique pour l'Eu~ 
rope, le Conseil ait, a la suite de !'intervention du 
representant de l'Union sovietique, entame une 
discussion sur le plan Marshall. Il s'agit la, en 
effet, d'une chose que personne ne peut remettre 
en question, car il est evident que l 'aide qui sera 
fournie par· ce plan est destinee a sauver l'Europe 
d'une catastrophe qui aurait ete inevitable sans 
la genereuse initiative des Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique. 

L'orateur ·desire revenir de fa~on aussi objec
tive que possible sur deux points de !'intervention 
du representant de l'Union sovietique. Ce dernier 
s'est refere a des articles de journaux franc;ais 
qui avaient critique certaines des clauses de 1 'ac
cord bilateral. Le representant de la France remer
cie le representant de l'Union sovietique d'avoir 
prouve, en citant ces articles, que la France a 
conserve son independance. Les articles de jour
naux en question sont anterieurs a la concb;tsion 
des accords ·bnateraux et ne tiennent done pas 
compte des clauses relatives a la reciprocite com
plete et aux droits de deuonciation. L'orateur 
ajoute que le representant de l 'Union sovietique 
n'a pas besoin de se faire de souci au sujet de la 
France, qui a connu des circonstances tout aussi 
difficiles dans le passe. La France est assez jalouse 
de son independance pour qu 'il .n 'Y. ait pas lieu 
de craindre qu 'elle puisse y renoncer au cours de 
libres discussions avec des pays amis, qui ont si 
sou vent montre dans l 'histoire que l'indepen
dance de la France leur tenait a creur. 

127 



The Soviet Union representative had used the 
reduction in France's requests for equipment as 
an argument for asserting that the countries bene
fiting under the Marshall Plan were in danger 
of losing their independence because unwanted 
goods would be delivered to them. That would 
only happen if capital equipment were replaced 
by consumer goods that France did not require. 
Unfortunately, France did urgently require all 
forms of consumer goods. 

The Soviet Union representative had main
tained that one result of the Marshall Plan would 
be to reduce French agricultural production 
plans, so as to enable American agriculture to 
secure markets. Far from that being so, since 
the application of the Marshall Plan, and as a 
separate measure, the French Government had 
revised its agricultural production targets in 
view of the inadequacy of world agricultural pro
duction. The new plan provided for bringing 
one million hectares back into cultivation and for 
the reafforestation of three million hectares. In 
1952, the increase over pre-war production would 
be 20 per cent for cereals and potatoes, 30 per 
cent for meat and 35 per cent for dairy produce. 
The Soviet Union representative could therefore 
be reassured; France would even be able to 
contribute by her exports to restoring the balance 
between world food requirements and pro
duction. 

He added that after hearing the very judi
cious remarks of the Danish representative, he 
was more than ever convinced that the proposals 
of the Soviet Union delegation concerned exactly 
the same problems and had the same purposes 
as a number of resolutions unanimously adopted 
by the Economic Commission for Europe. If the 
Council acted as the Soviet Union representative 
wished, it would be doing the Commission's work 
all over again. The Economic Commission for 
Europe should b~ encouraged to continue its 
work on the lines already adopted. He then sub
mitted the following draft resolution : 

"The Economic and Social Council, 
"Having taken cognizance of the Report of 

the Economic Commission for Europe, · 
"Approves its terms; 
"Notes with satisfaction that the Economic 

Commission for Europe has decided to under
take the study of, and to seek a solution for, 
the problem of trade between the countries of 
Europe and the closely related problem of the 
development of the under-industrialized coun
tries of Europe ; 

"Invites the Economic Commission for 
Europe to pursue this work realistically with 
a view to obtaining concrete results as soon as 
possible." 1 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the Council constituted an 

1 See document E/885. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a tire 
argument de la reduction des demandes d'equipe
ment formulees par la France pour affirmer que 
les pays beneficiaires du plan Marshall risquent 
de perdre leur independance, parce que des mar
chandises dont ils n'ont pas besoin leur seront 
livrees. Cela ne se produirait que si les biens 
d'equipement etaient remplaces par des biens de 
consommation, dont la France n'aurait pas besoin. 
Malheureusement, la France a un besoin urgent 
de toutes sortes de biens de consommation. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a sou
tenu que l'un des resultats du plan Marshall 
serait d'amenuiser les plans fran~ais de produc
tion agricole, pour permettre a !'agriculture ame
ricaine de s'assurer des debouches. Il n'en est 
rien, et, depuis !'application du plan Marshall 
et independamment de cette application, le Gou
vernement fran~ais a procede a une revision de 
ses plans de production agricole, en raison de 
l'insuffisance de la production agricole mondiale. 
Le nouveau plan prevoit la remise en culture 
d'un million d'hectares et le reboisement de trois 
millions d'hectares. Ainsi, en 1952, l'accroisse
ment de production par rapport a l'avant-guerre 
sera de 20 % pour les cereales et les pommes de 
terre, de 30 % pour la viande, et de 35 % pour 
les produits laitiers. Le representant de l'Union 
sovietique peut done se rassurer; la France 
pourra meme contribuer par ses exportations au 
retablissement de l'equilibre entre les besoins et la 
production alimentaire du monde. 

L'orateur ajoute qu'apres ·a voir entendu les 
tres judicieuses observations du representant du 
Danemark, il est plus convaincu que jamais que 
les propositions de la delegation de l'Union sovie-

. tique portent exactement sur les memes pro
blemes et ont les memes buts qu'un certain 
nombre de resolutions adoptees a l'unanimite par 
la Commission economique pour l'Europe. Si le 
Conseil agissait conformement aux vamx du 
representant de l'Union sovietique, il referait de 
bout en bout le travail de la Commission. Ce qu'il 
faut faire, c'est encourager la Commission econo
mique pour l'Europe a poursuivre ses travaux 
dans. la voie oil elle s'est engagee. Le representant 
de la France presimte done le projet de resolution 
suivant : 

« Le Conseil economique et social, 
« Ayant pris connaissance du rapport de la 

Commission economique pour l 'Europe, 
« En approuve les termes ; 
« Note avec satisfaction que la Commission 

economique pour l'Europe a decide d'entre
prendre l'etude et de rechercher la solution du 
probleme du commerce intereuropeen et du 
probleme, qui y est etroitement lie, du develop
pement des pays europeens sous-industrialises; 

« Invite la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe a poursuivre ses travaux dans un 
esprit realiste, en vue d'obtenir le plus rapi
dement possible des resultats concrets. » 1 

M. ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) rappelle que le Conseil est une 

1 Voir document E/885. 

128 



international forum in which the representatives 
of Member countries should exchange views on 
the basic economic problems facing the world. It 
was quite natural that the delegation of the 
Soviet Union should raise the basic problems 
involved in the report of the Economic Commis
sion for Europe, which was one of the items 
on the Council's agenda; but all representatives 
did not welcome discussion of questions affecting 
the development and rehabilitation of various 
European countries. The tendency to avoid 
basic economic problems was discernible in a 
veiled form even in the current debate. The 
representative of the United Kingdom, who liked 
to pose as a champion of different forms of free
dom, never missed an opportunity to speak on 
the freedom of the Press. His eloquence could · 
not be questioned, but his arguments were not 
convincing, for they so often proved nothing but 
his liking for the wealth of the English language. 
He was advocating a peculiar form of freedom 
of speech when he wished to restrict discussion 
in the Council, but there were members who, 
contrary to the wishes of the United Kingdom 
representative, desired to exercise their right to 
speak on · the basic problems of European eco
nomy. 

He thanked the representative of the United 
Kingdom for offering to provide him with the 
records of the debate in Parliament on 'the bila
teral agreement. But the Government of the 
Soviet U n:ion already possessed them and had, in 
fact, translated them into Russian. It was clear 
from the remarks made during the discussion 
that his own statement at the previous meeting 
had been misunderstood. He would have an 
English translation of it distributed. The mis
understanding could not be blamed on the inter
preters, for members of his delegation had told 
him that his remarks had been faithfully ren
dered into English. He took the opportunity 
to express his admiration of the interpreters' 
ability and efficiency. 

The representative of the United Kingdom had 
attributed to him several views which he had 
never put forward or even implied. He had 
never said that there was a clause in the pub
lished bilateral agreement between the United 
Kingdom and the United States of America 
providing that the United Kingdom must 
curtail its nationalization programme. Neither 
was there a written agreement to curtail the 
nationalization of industry in the Ruhr, 
although it had been curtailed. · The repre
sentative of the United Kingdom had said that 
matters were referred in a democratic manner 
to the German people, but the German people 
had wanted the nationalization of the Ruhr 
industries and still wanted it. The occupation 
authorities, however, did not permit it. In the 
province of Hesse, the Germans had adopted a 
clause in their Constitution on the subject of 
nationalization, the inclusion o~ which the United 
States occupation authorities had not permitted. 

tribune · ihternationale ou il convient que les 
representants des pays membres echangent leurs 
vues sur les problemes economiques essentiels 
qui se posent au monde. Il est t.out a fait naturel 
que la delegation de l'Union sovietique souleve 
les problemes fonda1nentaux que pose le rapport 
de la Commission econornique pour l'Europe, 
puisque ce rapport constitue l'un des points de 
l'ordre du jour du Conseil; mais, les delegues 
n'accueillent pas tous avec la meme faveur la 
discussion des questions interessant le developpe
ment et la reconstruction des differents pays 
europeens. Meme dans le debat en cours, on peut 
discerner une tendance voilee a eluder les grands 
problemes economiques. Le representant du 
Royauine-Uni, qui aime a se poser en defenseur 
des diverses foriiles de liberte, ne manque jamais 
une occasion de parler de la liberte de la presse. 
On ne saurait mettre en doute son eloquence, 
mais ses arguments ne sont pas convaincants, car 
ils ne prouvent rien d'autre que son gout pour 
la richesse de la langue anglaise. Il s'est fait 
l'avocat d'une forme particuliere de la liberte 
d'expression, puisqu'il voudrait limiter le champ 
des discussions au sein du Conseil. Il est toute
fois certains membres du Conseil qui, contraire
ment au vam du representant du Royaume-Uni, 
desirent exercer leur droit de parole a propos des 
problemes essentiels de l'economie europeenne, 
afin de rechercher une solution a ces problemes. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique remercie 
le representant du Royaume-Uni de lui avoir 
offert de lui fournir le compte rendu des debats 
qui ont eu lieu au Parlement sur l'accord bila
teral..Mais le.Gouvernement de l 'Union sovietique 
le possede deja et il l'a meme fait traduire en 
russe. Il ressort clairement des observations pre
sentees au cours du debat que la declaration faite 
par l'orateur ~ la seance precedente a ete mal 
comprise. Une traduction anglaise de ce discours 
sera par ses soins communiquee aux membres du 
Conseil. On ne saurait reprocher aux interpretes 
d'avoir ete la cause de ce malentendu, car 
certains membres de· la delegation de 1 'Union 
sovietique ~mt dit a l'orateur que son intervention 
avait ete fidelement traduite en anglais. Il profite 
de 1 'occasion pour dire aux interpretes com bien il 
adinire· leur competence et la qualite de leur 
travail. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni a attribue 
au representant de 1 'Union sovietique pl usieurs 
opinions qu 'il n 'a jamais avancees ni meme donne 
a entendre. L'orateur n 'a jamais dit qu 'une clause 
du texte de 1 'accord bilateral entre le Royaume- · 
Uni et les Etats-Unis qui a ete publie stipulait que 
le Royaume-Uni dut reduire son programme de 
nationalisations. Il n'existe pas non plus d'accord 
ecrit prevoyant la reduction des nationalisations 
des industries de la Ruhr, quoique le plan de 
nationalisation ait bien ete reduit. Le represen
tant du Royaume-Uni a declare que ces questions 
etaient soumises au peuple allemand, suivant les 
principes democratiques, mais le peuple allemand 
voulait la nationalisation des industries de la 
Ruhr, et continue a la vouloir, pourtant, les auto
rites d'occupation ne la permettent pas. Dans la 
province de Hesse, les Allemands avaient adopte 
pour leur Constitution une clause concernant la 
:riationalisation, mais les autorites d'occupation 
americaines n'ont pas permis qu'elle y flit inseree. 

129 



Again, the representative of the United Kingdom 
had misinterpreted his remarks about the cessa
tion of UNRRA activities: UNRRA had been 
dissolved because, fuilctioning within the frame
work of the United Nations, it could not be uti
lized as an instrument of ·discrimination and poli
tical control; the European Recovery Programme 
had been instituted because it could be controlled 
by the United States Government for its own 
ends; in fact, it violated United Nations princi
ples. The representative of the United Kingdom 
had also misinterpreted his remarks on the dollar 
hunger created by the American ruling classes. 
The dollar shortage had been created in order 
to facilitate penetration of European markets by 
the United States of America. If there had not 
been a dollar shortage, the European countries 
would not have agreed to the terms of Marshall 
Aiel, which a deputy in the French Parliament 
itself had described as insulting to France. The 
representative of the United Kingdom had also 
misconstrued his remarks about agricultural pro
duction. The French representative had said 
that France was revising her programme with 
a view to increasing cultivated acreage; that was 
precisely what the Soviet Union delegation was 
advocating for the whole of Europe. The culti
vated area should be increased, so that, in 1952, 
Europe would produce all the food it needed and 
be independent of imports from abroad. 

It was clear that a written version of his speech 
was needed by the representative of the United 
Kingdom, who should not reply to a statement 
which he had not understood. He had not only 
misconstrued the views of the'Soviet Union dele
gation but had also introduced a lot of subjects 
not mentioned in the statement, such as the posi
tion in Greece, which was to a large extent due 
to the so-called "assistance" from the United 
States of America and the United Kingdom. He 
admitted that that matter also was not in the 
bilateral agreement between the United King~ 
dom and the United States. The representative 
of the United Kingdom had failed to grasp the 
distinction made between the ruin of small
holders by capitalists and the excellent collective 
system of voluntary co-operation between small
holders. He should find out what that system 
was before he commented on it. Many other 
examples could be given of how the United King
dom representative had misquoted his statement. 

The French representative had· declared that 
the economic situation in France had been des
perate and that without Marshall Aid it would 
have ended in bankruptcy. He himself had· a 
higher opinion of French economy and of the 
heroism of the people of Europe who, following 
the example of the Soviet Union, had triumphed 
over fascism. The statement made by the repre
sentative of France could not reflect French 
public opinion; a declaration of bankruptcy was 
unworfhy of France. Far more importan:t for 
the restoration of normal economy than assis
tance from abroad was the utilization of domestic 

De plus le representant du Royaume-Uni a mal 
interprete les remarques de l'orateur au sujet de 
la cessation de l'activite de l'UNRRA. L'UNRRA 
a ete supprimee parce que, fonctionnant clans 
le cadre de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, elle 
ne pouvait etre utilisee comme un instrument de 
discrimination· et de mainmise politique; le pro
gramme de relevement economique de l'Europe a 
ete mis sur pied, parce qu'il peut etre controle 
par le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis et utilise par 
lui a ses propres fins; en fait, il est contraire aux 
principes des Nations Unies. Le representant du 
Royaume-Uni a egalement mal interprete les 
remarques de l'orateur sur la penurie de dollars 
creee par les classes dirigeantes aniericaines. La 
penurie de dollars a ete creee afin de faciliter 

. aux Etats-Unis d'Amerique la penetration des 
marches europeens. S'il n'y avait pas eu penurie 
de dollars, les pays d'Europe n'auraient pas 
accepte les conditions clu plan Marshall, dont un 
depute au Parleinent fran~ais lui-meme a dit 
qu'elles etaient outrageantes pour la France. Le 
representant du Royaume-Uni a egalement mal 
interprete les remarques de l'orateur sur la pro
duction agricole. Le representant de la France 
a declare que la France procedait a une revision 
de son plan de production pour accro!tre le 
total de la superficie cultivee; c'est la precise
ment ce plan que la delegation de l'Union sovie
tique recommande pour toute l'Europe. Il faut 
augmenter le total de la superficie cultivee afin 
qu 'en 1952, l 'Europe produise tous les vivres 
dont elle a besoin et ne· soit plus a la merci des 
importations provenant de pays extra-europeens~: 

Il est evident que le representant du Royaume
Uni a besoin d'un texte ecrit du discours du 
representant de l'Union sovietique et qu'il ne 
devrait pas repondre a une intervention qu'il n'a 
pas comprise. Non seulement il a mal interprete 
les vues de la delegation de l'Uriion sovietique, 
mais' il a egalement touche a un grand nombre 
de sujets dont il n'avait pas parle, comme par 
exemple la situation en Grece, qui est due, dans 
une· grande mesure, a la pretendue « aide » 

·des Etats-Unis d'Amerique et du Royaume-Uni. 
Il est exact que cette question ne figure pas non 
plus. dans l'accord bilateral conclu entre le 
Royaume-Uni et les Etats-Unis. Le representant 
du Royaume-Uni n'a pas saisi la distinction faite' 
entre la ruine des petits exploitants agricoles par 
les capitalistes et !'excellent systeme collectif de 
cooperation volontaire entre petits proprietaires. 
Il devrait se renseigner sur ce systeme avant d'en 
parler. On pourrait donner beaucoup d'autres 
exemples de la fa~on dont le representant du 
Royaume-Uni a deforme la declaration du repre
sentant de l'Union sovietique. 

Le representant de la France a declare que la 
situation economique de la France avait ete 
desesperee et que, sans l'aide fournie au titre 
du plan Marshall, elle aurait abouti a la faillite 
du pays. L'orateur a pour sa part une plus haute 
idee de l'economie fran~aise et de l'hero'isme 
des peuples d'Europe qui, en suivant l'exemple 
de l'Union sovietique, ont triomphe du fascisme. 
Il est impossible que la delaration du represen
tant de la France traduise exactement l'opinion 
publique fran~aise. Un aveu de faillite est indigne 
de la France. L'utilisation des ressources natio
nales est beaucoup plus importante pour le reta-

130 



resources. The bilateral agreements between the 
United States and countries of Europe were 
shameful to those countries and would reduce 
them to the status of United States colonies. He 
was glad such views could not be suppressed in 
the French Press and that the bad colonial era 
was ending. 

He was surprised at the statement of the 
United States representative, which was little 
more than a denial in general terms of what he 
(Mr. Arutiunian) had said about the Marshall 
Plan. He had expected a factual reply to his 
own factual statement. However, there was.one 
new development in that the United States repre
sentative had said that the cessation of exports 
to Europe would prod-uce a crisis in the United 
States of· America, although he claimed that it 
would only be a minor crisis, since domestic pro
duction was so large in relation 'to those exports, 
In 1929, the economic depression had occurred 
because of the fall in exports, although at that 
time they were surely far smaller in relation to 
domestic production. The U:nited .States repre
sentative had said that the exercise of control 
over the source of raw materials was a priyilege 
of the United States, as lts dollars paid for the 
raw materials. But such control was not in 
conformity with the freedom of international 
trade; it meant dictatorship of the United 
States of America. Naturally the United States 
would exercise that control in accordance with 
its own domestic interests. 

He opposed the adoption of the draft r~solu
tion proposed by the representative of France, 
since it constituted another attempt to avoid a 
debate on basic economic problems. Its adoption 
would in no way forward the work of the .Eco
nomic Commission for Europe, sin,ce in contained 
nothing but mere approval of the report. He 
urged the Council to adopt a resolution on the 
substance of the report such as the Soviet Union 
delegation h::td proposed (E/884). 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

ONE HUNDRED AND EIGHTY
FOURTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Wednesday, 28 July 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President: Dr. Charles MALIK · 

16. Continuation of the discussion on 
the Report of the Economic Com
mission for Europe 1 (E/791, E/791/ 
Add. 1 and 2, E/884 and E/885). 

The PRESIDENT re-opened the discussion on the 
Report of the Economic Commission for Europe. 

· Mr. SANTA CRuz (Chile) observed that it might 
be contended that Qnly countries represented on 

l See supplement No. 10 (E/791). 

blissement d'une economie normale qu'une aide 
exterieure. Les accords bilateraux conclus entre 
les Etats-Unis et les pays de !'Europe sont une 
honte pour CeS pays et les reduii'ont au rang de 
colonies des Etats-Unis. L'orateur est heureux 
que de telles opinions ne puissent etre etouffees 
dans la presse frangaise et que l'age funeste du 
colonialisme prenne fin. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique est sur
pris de la declaration du representant des Etats
Unis, qui n'a guere fait que nier de fagon tres 
generale ce que l'orateur lui-meme avait dit du 
plan Marshall. Ii escomptai.t une reponse objec
tive a sa propre declaration objective. Cependant, 
il s'est produit un fait nouveau: le representant 
des Etats-Unis a admis que l'arret des exporta
tions a destination de l'Europe provoquerait une 
crise aux·Etats-Unis, tout en pretendant que cette 
crise ne serait pas grave, la production nationale 
etant de beaucoup superieure a ces exportations. 
En 1929, la crise econo:riJ.ique s'est produite a 
cause de la diminution du volume des exporta
tions, bien qu 'a cette epoque, celles-ci aient ete 
assurement beaucoup plus faibles encore par rap
port a la production nationale. Le representant 
des Etats-Unis a declare qu'il etait legitime que 
ce pays exerce un controle sur l 'origine des 
maticres premieres, puisque ce sont ses dollarB 
qui servent a payer les achats de matieres pre
mieres. Mais ce controle n'est pas compatible .avec 
la liherte du commerce international; il equivaut 
a la mainmise des Etats-Unis d'Amerique. Natu
rellement, les Etats-Unis exerceront ce controle · 
de maniere a servir leurs propres interets. 

L'orateur s'opposera a !'adoption du projet 
de resolution du representant de la France parce 
qu'il ne represente qu'une nouvelle tentative pour 
eluder la discussion de problemes economiques 
essentiels. Si le. Conseil l'adoptait, cela ne ferait 
faire aucun progres aux travaux de la Commis
sion economique pour l 'Europe puisqu'il nc 
contient rien d'autre qu'une simple approbation 
du rapport. L 'orateur insiste au pres du Conseil 
pour qu'il adopte sur le fond du rapport une reso
lution du genre de celle que la delegation de 
l'Union sovietique a proposee (E/884). 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 15. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT
QUATRIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le mercredi 28 juillet 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK 

t6. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
de la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe 1 (E/791, E/791/Add. 1 
et 2, .E/884 ~t E/885). 

Le PRESIDENT rouvre la discussion sur le ·rap
port de la Commission economique pour l'Europe. 

M. SANTA CRuz (Chili) remarque que l'on pour
rait soutenir qu'il appartient exclusivement aux 

1 Voir le Supplement No 10 (E/791). 

131 




